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March 24, 2011

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Honorable Chris Christie
Governor

State House

125 West State Street

P.O. Box 001

Trenton, New Jersey 08625

ATTN: David Reiner, Assistant Counsel
Governor's Authorities Unit
Dear Governor Christie:

Enclosed please find an original and one copy of the minutes of the meeting of the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority held on Tuesday, March 22, 2011.

| hereby certify that it is a frue and correct copy of the proceedings.
Sincerely, | :
|
(e P

James Poole
Secretary

Enclosures
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
HELD AT 103 COLLEGE ROAD EAST, PRINCETON, NEW JERSEY
ON TUESDAY, MARCH 22, 2011

The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m. by Chairman Jacobs. The New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority gave notice of the time, place and date of this meeting via fax and email on June
11, 2010, to The Star Ledger, The Times and the Secretary of State and by posting the notice at the

- offices of the Authority in Princeton, New Jersey. Pursuant to the New Jersey Open Public Meetings
Act, a resolution must be passed by the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority in order to hold a
session from which the public is excluded.

AUTHORITY MEMBERS PRESENT:

Roger B. Jacobs, Esq., Chairman

Ridgeley Hutchinson, Vice Chairman

Joshua Hodes, Treasurer

Andrew P. Sidamon-Eristoff, State Treasurer (represented by Steven Petrecca)

AUTHORITY MEMBERS ABSENT:

Steven D. Weinstein, Chaif, Comm. on Higher Education

STAFF PRESENT:

James Poole, Executive Director

Barbara Cannon, Deputy Executive Director

Sheryl Stitt, Director of Communications

Marie Mueller, Controller

Kristen Middieton, Assistant Controller

Debra Paterson, Sr. Risk Manager

Gary Vencius, Senior Accountant

Jennifer Soyka, Esq., Project Manager

Jennifer LaMarsh, Project/Communications Assistant
Denise Carroll, Administrative Assistant

Linda Hazley, Office Manager

Sheila Toles, Exec. Assistant/Human Resources Specialist



ITEMS OF DIiSCUSSION

1.

Resolution of Appreciation to Barbara L. Cannon

The Members were asked to consider the adoption of a resolution acknowledging and
expressing appreciation to Barbara Cannon for her leadership as Deputy Executive Director
to the Authority for the past eight years.

Ms. Cannon thanked the Members for their support and for giving her the opportunity to work
with a wonderful staff that uses their extraordinary talent and dedication to serve the Authority’s
clients. Ms. Cannon stated that it had been a privilege to work for an Authority whose mission
and good work had contributed so much to the growth and excellence of higher education in
New Jersey and that she wished the Authority the best in future.

Mr. Jacobs thanked Ms. Cannon for her service to the Authority. He stated that she would be
missed. and that he could not imagine going on a campus visit without thinking of her. Mr.
Jacobs thanked Ms. Cannon for her service and invited her to come back to the Authority for a
visit anytime.

Mr. Poole commented that he had asked Ms. Cannon to reconsider her retirement and that it
was the highest compliment he couid give but she declined. Ms. Cannon thanked him for the

offer.

Mr. Hodes moved the adoption of the foliowing entitled resolution:

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION TO BARBARA L. CANNON

The motion was seconded by Mr. Petrecca and passed unanimously.

The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit 1.

Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of February 22, 2011

The minutes of the meeting of February 22, 2011 were hand delivered to Governor Chris
Christie under the date of February 23, 2011. Mr. Hutchinson moved that the minutes of the
meeting be approved as presented; the motion was seconded by Mr. Petrecca and passed
unanimously.

Approval of Resolution for Payment of a Portion of the Debt Service on the Authority’s
Higher Education Capital Improvement Fund Bonds

Mr. Poole reported that the resolution had been pulled from the agenda and would perhaps
be brought back to the Members for the April meeting. Mr. Jacobs requested a written
request from the State Treasurer’s Office for the funds. Mr. Hodes asked why the funds were
being given to the State and Mr. Petrecca responded that the funds would be used fo pay a
portion of the State’s debt service due on the Higher Education Capital Improvement Fund
bonds. Mr. Hutchinson mentioned that he had voiced concerns on how the transfer would
affect the Authority's reserves. Mr. Petrecca advised that the Office of Management and
Budget believed that the Authority would have working capital to continue to operate. Mr.
Hodes then requested a written opinion from the Treasurer's Office and Mr. Petrecca advised
that a written opinion had not been provided in the past and that the Authority has staff and
auditors to answer the Members' questions and concerns.



Mr. Jacobs requested that, going forward, the Members receive meeting material in a timely fashion
and that if there was a last minute addition, he requested that Mr. Poole call the Members to alert
them prior to the meeting.

Mr. Jacobs acknowledged the prior reserve resolutions from years 2005 and 2008 that were
disptayed for the Members on the meeting table and. questioned the changes since that time. Mr.
Poole explained that he did not know why the funds had been reserved in the past and he went on to
read a partial explanation from one of the resolutions that stated the funds would be used as a
reserve to facilitate normal operations and for counsel and consultants, if needed, in the event of
difficulties experienced by the Authority or its client colleges. Mr. Poole then stated that he had been
informed by staff that none of the Authority’s bonds had ever defaulted and that he did not know why
the Authority needed $11,500,000. ,

No action was taken.

4, Approval of Resolution and Form of Legal Documents for the Sale of NJEFA Revenue
Bonds, Rowan University Issue, Series 2011 C, In an Amount Nof fo Exceed

$45,000,000

Ms. Soyka reported the details of the proposed Serles 2011 C bonds in an amount not to
exceed $45,000,000 on behalf of Rowan University. The proceeds of the issue will be used
for the current refunding of all or a portion of the Authority’s outstanding Series 2001 C
‘bonds; and certain costs of issuance.

The financing is structured as a fixed rate, negotiated transaction with an interest rate not to
exceed 7.00%. The issue is tentatively scheduled to be sold the week of April 25, 2011 and
to close the week of May 2, 2011.

Mr. Hodes asked if, going forward, reports could be provided to the Members explaining how
the evaluation committees select bond counsel and financial advisors. Mr. Poole advised that

the Members had been provided a revised memo with scores of all the firms that responded
to the RFP’s for the Rowan University transaction. :

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption of the following entitled resolution:
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ROWAN UNIVERSITY BONDS
The motion was seconded by Mr. Petrecca and passed unanimously.
The term sheet, memo and adopted resolution are appended as Exhibit 11
5. Approval of Resolution Accepting the Designation of Bond Counsel by the Attorney

General in Connection with the Issuance of Refunding Bonds by the Authority on
Behalf of Seton Hall University

Ms. Soyka reported that Seton Hall University had requested that the Authority begin the
process of procuring professionals for the refunding of several series of outstanding Authority
bonds that are currently refundable as of April 1, 2011. She reported that on March 11, 2011,
the Attorney General's Office, which appoints the Authority’s bond counsel, distributed an
RFP to 11 firms and that six responses were received. Ms. Soyka reporied that the Attorney
General had, on the basis of a competitive process, designated Gluck Walrath, LLP to act as
bond counsel to the Authority in connection with the financing. Ms. Soyka advised thaf the
resolution only accepts Giuck Walrath’s appointment and that the Authority hopes to bring the



resolution authorizing the issuance of the refunding bonds and the related documents to the
Members for approvat at the Aprit meeting.

Mr. Petrecca moved the adoption of the following enfitled resolution:
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DESIGNAT[ON OF BOND COUNSEL BY THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY IN CONNECTION WITH

THE ISSUANCE OF REFUNDING BONDS BY THE AUTHORITY ON BEHALF OF
SETON HALL UNIVERSITY

The motion was seconded by Mr. Hutchinson and passed unahimous!y.
The memo and resolution are appended as Exhibit 1il.
Approval of Resolution Appointing a Verification Agent and Accepting the Designation

of Counse! by the Attorney General in Connection with the Defeasance of All of
Monmouth University’s Qutstanding Bonds

Ms. Soyka reported that Monmouth University had decided fo refund all of its outstanding tax-
exempt bonds issued by the Authority with a bank loan. She reported that Monmouth
University had a little over $14 million in bonds outstanding and that in order to legally
defease the bonds, a verification report must be prepared and a defeasance opinion must be
issued by bond counsel. Ms. Soyka reported that on March 2, 2011, the Attorney General's
Office distributed an RFP to 11 firms to provide bond counsel services and that the Attorney
General had, on the basis of a competitive process, designated the firm of McCarter &
English, LLP to act as counsel to the Authority in connection with the defeasance and based
on fee quotes received from the verification agent, Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc. was
designated fo act as verification agent.

Ms. Soyka added that the resolution also appoints an escrow agent which is not subject to an
RFP process because the escrow agent is simply the trustee on the prior bonds.

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption of the following entitled resolution:
RESOLUTION APPOINTING A VERIFICATION AGENT AND ACCEPTING THE
DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF
NEW JERSEY IN CONNECTION WiTH THE DEFEASANCE OF ALL OF
MONMOUTH UNIVERSITY’S QUTSTANDING BONDS

The motion was seconded by Mr. Petrecca and passed unanimously.

The memo and resoiution are appended as Exhibit V.

Report of the Authority’s Audit Committee and Adoption of Resolution Accepting the
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report for 2010 '

Mr. Hodes reported that the Audit Committee met on January 26, 2011 with both Randy
Nelson of Ernst & Young, the Authority’s external auditors, and Will SanFilippo of Vitt &
SanFilippo, the Authority's internal auditors, to discuss the scope of and procedures for the
audit of the Authority’s financial statements. He reported that the Committee met again on
March 21, 2011 to discuss and review the proposed financial statements and auditors’ report
for the calendar year ended December 31, 2010. Mr. Hodes then recommended that the
Members approve the financial statements. Mr. Hutchinson added that everything seemed in



order and moved to adopt the statements. Mr. Petrecca complimented staff on a job well
done.

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption of the following entitied resolution:
RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
ACCEPTING AND ADOPTING THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR 2010

The motion was seconded by Mr. Petrecca and passed unanimously.

The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit V.

Mr. Nelson advised that the financial statements that had been adopted included a Subsequent Event
footnote that needed to be removed, but that was ministerial and would not require additional board

action.

8.

Acceptance of Operating and Construction Fund Statements for January and February
2011 '

Ms. Mueller reviewed the Results of Operations and Budget Variance Analysis and reported on
the status of construction funds and related investments for February 2011. Ms. Mueller
reported that she had reviewed the January statements at last month’s meeting and wouid be
happy.to answer any questions the Members might have.

Mr. Hodes moved that the reports be accepted as preéented; the motion was seconded by
Mr. Petrecca and passed unanimously. -

The reports are appended as Exhibit V1.

Next Meeting Date

Chairman Jacobs announced that the next meeting will be on Tuesday, April 26, 2011 at
Caldwell Gollege in Caldwell, New Jersey and requested a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Hodes moved that the meeting be adjourned at 9:46 a.m.; the motion was seconded by Mr.
Hutchinson and passed unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

e

ines Poole
Secretary



EXHIBIT I

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION

T0
BARBARA L. CANNON

March 22, 2011

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORSTY

WHEREAS, on March 31, 2003, Barbara L. Cannon was appointed as Deputy Executive Director
and Assistant Secretary of the New lJersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) and has
continued to serve in that position for eight years; and '

WHEREAS, during her tenure as Deputy Executive Director, Ms. Cannon has served as the
Authority’s Liaison with New Jersey’s higher education community, including the Commission on Higher
Education, the New Jersey Presidents’ Council and the Public Library Advisory Construction Board; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Cannon has also served as Coordinator for the Authority’s outreach activities;
Director of the Authority’s Investor Relations Program, Ethics Liaison Officer, Director of Human Resources
and EEO/A ffirmative Action Officer; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Cannon’s service to the Authority continued an already long and distinguished
career in public service that included her election to three terms or twelve years as Mayor of Old Bridge,
New Jersey; her election to three terms as Councilwoman of Old Bridge, where she also served as Council
Vice President and President; and her service as Chairwoman of Governor Christine Todd Whitman’s
Property Tax Commission; among others; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Cannon has announced her retirement from the Authority effective April 1, 2011;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to formally recognize this significant announcement and to pay
tribute to Ms. Cannon for her extensive time, knowledge, expertise and professionalism that she has
dedicated to the Authority and its college and university clients, as well as to her distinguished career in
public service to the State of New Jersey;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority hereby expresses its sincere
appreciation to Ms. Cannon for her many and significant contributions to the Authority, to the higher
education community of New Jersey and to the State of New Jersey. '

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Authority hereby honors the employment service of Ms.
Cannon to the Authority and recognizes that her service has greatly contributed to its success and to the
enhancement of campus facilities at New Jersey’s institutions of higher education, thereby benefiting all of
the citizens of the State.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that on behalf of the many friends and colleagues of Ms. Cannon
at the Authority and in higher education throughout New Jersey, the Members wish her a long and happy
retirement and one that will afford her the opportunity fo continue fo enjoy her many civic interests,
gardening, craft shows, travel and family time with her family; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution of Appreciation be given to Ms.
Cannon as a tribute to her service to the New. Jersey Educational Facilities Authority.



Mr. Hodes_ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and read,
which motion was seconded by Mr. Petrecca___and upon roll call the following members voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Joshua Hodes
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Steven D. Weinstein

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Appreciation Barbara Cannon - 3/22/11
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TERM SHEET

Borrower: Rowan University, Glassboro, New Jersey

Issue: Series 2011 C

Amount: Not to Exceed $45,000,000

Purpose: To provide funds to finance: (i) the current refunding of all or a
portion of the Authority’s outstanding Series 2001 C bonds issued
on behalf of the University; and (ii) the payment of certain costs of
issuance.

Security: General Obligation of the University

Structure: Fixed Rate, Negotiated Sale

Term: Not later than July 1, 2041

True

Interest Cost: Not to Exceed 7.00%

Expected

Bond Ratings: A2 - Moody’s Investors Service
A+ - Standard & Poor’s Rating Services

Bond Insurance: To Be Determined

Tentative Pricing:

Tentative Closing:

Week of April 25, 2011

Week of May 2, 2011



Page Two

The Authority Members will be asked to adopt the Series 2011 C Bond Resolution
which outlines the various parameters of the financing; authorizes the issuance of the
revenue refunding bonds; authorizes and approves the form of all legal documents
necessary for the financing, including a Trust Indenture between the Authority and the
Trustee, the Lease and Agreement, Continuing Disclosure Agreement, Escrow Deposit
Agreement, Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement, and Contract of
Purchase; and delegates to any Authorized Officer the ability to take all actions as may be
necessary to sell and issue the bonds, execute the Contract of Purchase with the
Underwriter as well as all other bond documents, and finalize this transaction.

Professionals on the Transaction:

Bond Counsel:
Authority’s Counsel:
Financial Advisor:
Senior Manager:

McManimon & Scotland, LI.C
Attorney General of New Jersey
Scott Balice Strategies

Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc.

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
To Be Determined

The Bank of New York Mellon
Hawkins, Delafield & Wood, LLP
Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc.

Co-Manager:

Underwriters’ Counsel:
Trustee/Escrow Agent:
Trustee/Eserow Agent’s Counsel:
Verification Agent:

32211
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Date: .March 22,2011
To:  Members of the Authority
Re:  Procurement of Professionals — Rowan University

Below please find the procurement procedures that were undertaken with respect to the various
professional appointments in connection with the Rowan University transaction.

Bond Counsel

On March 2, 2011 the Attomey General’s office circulated an RFP to 11 firms to provide bond
counsel services in connection with the refunding of the Authority’s outstanding bonds issued on
behalf of Rowan University, Series 2003 C. On March 8, 2011, 8 responses were received. The
responsive firms and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm Fees

McManimon & Scotland, LLC $35,000
Gluck Walrath LL.P $36,500
DeCotiis, Fitzpatrick & Cole, LLP $37.,500
McCarter & English, LLP : $40,000
Gibbons, PC _ $45,000
Obermayer Rebmann Maxwell & Hippel LLP $45,000
Windels Marx Lane & Mittendorf, LLP $55,000
Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP $56,250

Senior Managing Underwriter

~ On March 4, 2011, Authority staff circulated an RFP to the 13 firms that are members of the
Authority’s pool of senior managing underwriters. On March 9, 2011, 10 responses were
received. The responsive firms and their respective scores are as follows:

Firm Evalnator #1 Evaluator #2 Evaluator #3 Fee Total
Morgan Stanley 87 79.5 82 5.299 248.5
Citigroup 31 81 86 4.9208 248
Wells Fargo 77.5 72.5 90 455 240

RBC ' 83 83 73 6.08 239



JP Morgan

Ramirez

Barclays

Bank of America/Merrill Lynch
FPNC

Jeffries

Co-Managing Underwriter

On March 9, 2011, Authority staff circulated an RFP 1o the 27 firms that are members of
the Authority’s pool of senior managing underwriters and co-managing underwriters. On
March 15, 2011, 15 responses were received. The responsive firms and their respective

scores are as follows:

Firm

Bank of America Merrili Lynch

Raymond James
Fidelity Capital Markets
Roosevelt & Cross

NW Capital

Loop Capital Markets
Cabrera Capital Markets
Lebenthal & Co.
Ramirez & Co.

George K. Baum
Jackson Securities

JP Morgan

PNC Capital Markets
Powell Capital Markets
Rice Financial

Financial Advisor

On March 4, 2011, Authority staff circulated an RFP to 60 financial advisory firms and
posted the RFP on the Authority’s and the State of New Jersey’s websites. On March 10,
2011, 10 responses were received. The responsive firms and their respective scores are

as follows:

Firm

Scott Balice
Phoenix
Prager

1st Southwest
Acacia

PFM

Butcher Mark

78
77.5
74
70
60
51

Evaluator #1*

81

86.5
76
70

70.5

62.5
33

75.5
75
74

72.5

57.5

48.5

Score
$131,235,000
$16,913,780
$13,902,304
$12,893,540
$11,586,543
$8,694,200
$7,988,050
$7,590,971
$6,017,733
Non-Responsive
Non-Responsive
Non-Responsive
Non-Responsive
Non-Responsive
Non-Responsive

Evaluator #2 Evaluator #3

95.5
85.5
76.5
70.5
67.5
59.5
42

85.5
77.5
79
72.5
55
46

77.5
82
78
71
65

54.5
40

4.732
5.04
5.07 -
6.33

6.35-6.41

6.724

Fee*
$17,000

19,500 .

21,000
23,000
25,500
25,500
28,000

239
230
227
215

172.5

145.5

Total
254
254

230.5

211.5
203

176.5
115



Stanley Stone 31 325 46 28,000 109.5
Fairmount 25.5 31.5 25.5 33,000 82.5
GMS 14.5 32 34.5 33,250 81

* In calculating the fee, if the fee was given in dollars/bonds, we assumed a $25 million
transaction and if no cap on expenses was listed, we assumed a $3,000 cap on expenses.

Verification Agent

On March 11, 2011, Authority staff circulated an RFP to 4 firms that regularly perform
verification agent services and posted the RFP on the Authority’s and the State of New
Jersey’s websites. On March 15, 2011, three responses were received. The responsive
firms and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm Fees
Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc. $1,640
BondResource Partners, LP $2,100
Mercadien, P.C. $3,000
Trustee

On March 3, 2011, Authority staff circulated an RFP to the three banks that comprise the
Authority’s pool of trustees. On March 9, 2011, two responses were recetved. The
responsive firms and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm : Fees
The Bank of New York Mellon $200
1J.S. Bank, National Association 3400

. Escrow Agent

The Escrow Agent is the trustee on the bonds being refunded. This role is not the subject
of an RFP process. :



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ROWAN UNIVERSITY BONDS
Adopted: March 22, 2011 |

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority") was created as a
public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey (the "State") pursuant to the New Jersey
Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A. of Title 18A of the New Jersey Statutes, as
amended and supplemented), NJ.S.A. 184.724-1 et seq. (the "Act"); and '

WHEREAS, Rowan University ("Rowan") has determined to undertake a project (the
"Refunding Project") consisting of: (i) the current refunding of bonds issued by the Authority,
" including, but not limited to, all or a portion of the Authority's outstanding $37,140,000 of the original
principal amount of Revenue Bonds, Rowan University Issue, Series 2001 C (the “Bonds to be
Refunded™) and (ji) the payment of costs of issuance of the Bonds (as hereinafter defined) as presented,
submitted and approved by Rowan's Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, has determined that it is necessary and in keeping with its
authorized purposes to issue a series of bonds to be designated "New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Rowan University [ssue, Series 2011 C" or such other designation
as may be determined by the Authority (the “Bonds") for the purpose of providing funds to finance the
Refunding Project; and

WHEREAS, the repayment of the Bonds will be secured by a Lease and Agreement between the
Authority and Rowan (the "Agreement"). The Bonds are payable solely from Revenues (as defined in the
Indenture), other than Additional Lease Payments (as defined in the Agreement), and from amounts on
deposit in certain funds under the Indenture. The obligation of Rowan to make the payments required
under the Agreement for the payment of debt service on the Bonds constitutes a general obligation of
Rowan; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8(c) of the Act, the. bonds of the Authority shall be
authorized by resolution of the members of the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS, AS FOLLOWS:
| ARTICLET
AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS; APPROVAL OF DOCUMENTS; APPOINTMENTS

1.1. Purpose of Issuance of the Bonds.

The Authority hereby declares the Refunding Project to be an authorized undertaking of the
Authority and authorizes and directs the Chair, Vice-Chair, Treasurer, Executive Director, Deputy
Executive Director, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary and any other person authorized by resolution of the
Authority, and any of such officers designated as "acting” or "interim" (each an "Authorized Officer")
to execute and deliver all documents necessary to enable the Authority, as permitted by the Act, 10
finance, on behalf of Rowan, the costs of the Refinding Project, in whole or in part.



1.2. Authorization of Bonds.

(a) The Authority hereby authorizes the issuance of the Bonds in an aggregate principal
amount not to exceed of $45,000,000 in order to finance, on behalf of Rowan, the costs of the Refunding
Project, in whole or in part.

® The Authority hereby finds and determines that the issuance of the Bonds
involves certain circumstances under which a negotiated bond sale is permissible as outlined in
Executive Order No. 26 (Whitman 1994), namely, volatile market conditions and a complex

credit, and a competitive sale of the Bonds is not in the best interest of the Authority and Rowan.

(c) Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Authority a contract of purchase (the ""Contract of Purchase') by and between the Authority and
senior managing underwriter, on behalf of itself and co-managing underwriter(s) (collectively, the
“Underwriter'"), in substantially the form presented to this meeting with such changes as shall be
approved by an Authorized Officer, with the advice of McManimon & Scotland, L.L.C., Bond Counsel
to the Authority (""Bond Counsel') and the Attorney General of the State (such approval to be
evidenced by such Authorized Officer's execution thereof) for the purchase of the Bonds at the price
or prices to be agreed upon; provided; however, that the underwriter's discount for the Bonds shall not
exceed $8.00 per $1,000.00 of the principal amount. A copy of the Contract of Purchase as executed
shall be filed with the records of the Authorty.

(d) The Chair, the Vice-Chair, and/or the Executive Director are hereby authorized to appoint
any additional underwriters to purchase the Bonds as members of an underwriting syndicate headed by the
Underwriter.

© The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form, shall be in the denominations,
and shall be numbered as shall be provided in the Indenture. The Bonds shall be dated, bear inferest,
mature and be executed and authenticated as shall be set forth in the Indenture; provided, however, that
the final maturity date of the Bonds will be no later than July 1, 2041. The Bonds shall bear interest at a fixed
rate as described in the Indenture, with a true interest cost not to exceed 7.00% per annum. The Bonds
shall be subject to redemption as provided in the Indenture; provided, however, that the redemption
premium on the Bonds, if any, shall not exceed 5.0%.

) The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth in the Indenture, with such
insertions, omissions or variations as may be necessary or appropriate.

() The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the Authority by the manual or facsimile
signature of its Chair, Vice Chair, Executive Director or Deputy Executive Director and its official common
seal (or a facsimile thereof) shall be thereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise reproduced
and aftested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Executive
Director or Deputy Executive Director (provided the same has not executed such Bond).

(h) Following the execition of the Bonds, any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to
deliver the Bonds to the Trustee for authentication and, afier authentication, to deliver the Bonds to the
Underwriter or its agent against receipt of the purchase price or unpaid balance thereof.



1.3. Approval of Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement.

The preparation, publication and distribution by the Underwriter of a Preliminary Official
Staternent (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) relating to the Bonds (in substantially the form
presented to the Authority at the time of adoption hereof, with such changes, omisstons, insertions and
revisions as any Authorized Officer shall deem necessary or advisable, with the advice of Bond
Counsel and the Attomey General of the State) are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. The
preparation and distribution by the Underwriter of a final Official Statement (the “Official
Statement”) for the Bonds (in substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such
changes, omissions, inserions and revisions as any Authorized Officer shall deem necessary or advisable,
with the advice of Bond Counsel and the Attormney General of the State) are hereby approved, and any.
Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to sign and deliver to the Underwriter the Official Statement in
final form acceptable to such Authorized Officer, Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized, with the
advice of Bond Counsel and the Attorney General of the State, to deem the Preliminary Official
" Statement final within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and to provide written evidence relating thereto in form acceptable to Bond
Counsel. ' '

1.4. Approval of Agreement.

The form of the Agreement presented to the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted (a copy
of which shall be filed with the records of the Authority) is hereby approved. Any Authorized Officer is
hereby authorized and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver, and any other Authorized Officer
is hereby authorized and directed fo affix and attest the official common seal of the Authority to the
Agreement with Rowan in substantially such form, with such changes therein (including, without
limitation, the date thereof) and any supplements thereto as Bond Counsel and the Attomey General of the
State may advise and the Authorized Officer executing the same may approve, such approval to be
evidenced by such Authorized Officer's execution thereof.

1.5. Authorization of Escrow Deposit Agreement

Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver,
and any other Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to affix and attest the official
common seal of the Authority to the Escrow Deposit Agreement, in such form as shall be approved, upon
the advice of Bond Counsel and the Attomey General of the State, such approval to be conclusively
evidenced by such Authorized Officer's execution thereof.

1.6. Approval of Indenture.

The form of the Indenture presented to the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted (a copy
of which shall be filed with the records of the Authority), is hereby approved. Any Authorized Officer is
hereby authorized and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver, and any other Authorized Officer
is hereby authorized and directed to affix and attest the official common seal of the Authority to, the
Tndenture in substantially such form, with such insertions and changes therein (including, without limitation,
the date thereof and the initial interest payment date contained therein and provisions relating to a policy of
insurance insuring principal and interest when due on the Bonds) and any supplements thereto as Bond
Counsel and the Attomey General of the State may advise and the Authorized Officer executing the
same may approve, such approval to be evidenced by such Authorized Officer's execution thereof.



1.7. Book Entry System for the Bonds.

Except as provided in the Indenture, the registered owner of all of the Bonds shall be The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), and the Bonds shall be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

1.8. Appointments.

(a)  Morgan Stanley & Co., Inc. is hereby appointed as the senior managing underwriter
in connection with the refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds to be Refunded pursuant to the
terms of the Contract of Purchase.

. (b)  Bank of America Merrill Lynch is hereby appointed as the co manager in connection
with the refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds to be Refunded.

J (c)  TheBank of New York Mellon is hereby appointed as the escrow agent (the “Escrow
Agent”) under the Escrow Deposit Agreement. The Bscrow Agent shall signify its acceptance of the

duties and obligations imposed upon it by the Escrow Deposit Agreement by the Escrow Agent's
execution thereof.

(d  Causey Demgen & Moore Inc. is hereby appointed to act as verification agent in

connection with the refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds to be Refinded pursuant to the terms
of the Escrow Deposit Agreement.

(¢)  Scott Balice Strategies LL.C is hereby appointed as the financial advisor fo the
Authority in connection with the Bonds.

()  The Bank of New York Mellon is hereby appointed as the Trustee under the
Indenture. The Trustee's acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it by the Indenture
shall be evidenced by the execution of the Indenture by the Trustee

1.9. Continuing Disclosure.

Pursuant to the Agreement, Rowan shall undertake all responsibility for compliance with
continuing disclosure requirements, and the Authority shall have no lability to the holders of the Bonds or
any other person with respect to such disclosure matters. The form of the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement'") by and between Rowan and the Trustee, as
Dissemination Agent, presented at this meeting (a copy of which shall be filed with the records of the
Authority) is hereby approved. The fajlure of Rowan fo comply with the requirements of the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement shall not constitute a default under the Indenture or the Agreement.

1.10. Bond Insurance Authorized.

Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to (i) select a municipal bond insurer (the "Bond
Insurer") for the Bonds to the extent that such Authorized Officer determines that bond insurance
is necessary or desirable in order to market the Bonds, (ii) execute a commitment letter for the issuance
of a bond insurance policy (the "Policy'") by such Bond Insurer (or a certificate evidencing selection



of the Bond Tnsurer), (ifi) carry out the Authority's obligations thereunder (including payment of the
premium for the Policy), and (iv) accept the terms and conditions relating to the Bonds required by
the Bond Insurer as a condition to issuance of the Policy and to incorporate such terms and conditions in
the Indenture and the Official Statement as such Authorized Officer deems necessary and appropriate,
with the advice of Bond Counsel to the Authority and the Attorney General of the State.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEQUS

2.1. Authorization to Invest Bond Proceeds.

Any Authorized Officer is authorized to enter into, or direct the Trustee to enter into, one or more
agreements to invest the proceeds of the Bonds as permitted by the Indenture ("Eligible
Investmenis"), which include investment agreements and repurchase agreements, in the event that such
Authorized Officer determines, in consultation with and with the consent of Rowan, that it is advantageous
to Rowan for the Authority to invest any proceeds of the Bonds in Eligible Investments, which includes
investment agreements and repurchase agreements.

Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to utilize the proceeds of the Bonds or other
available moneys held pursuant to the Refunding Project either (a) to purchase United States Treasury
Obligations, State and Local Government Series (“SLGS”™), or (b) to select a firm to act as its broker or to
direct the Authority's bidding agent to solicit bids to purchase open market U.S. Treasury Obligations
(which qualify as permissible defeasance obligations pursuant o the applicable documents for the
Bonds to be Refunded), in the event that such Authorized Officer of the Authority determines that it is
necessary or advantageous to the Authority to purchase such open market U.S. Treasury Obligations. In
connection with the purchase of open market U.S. Treasury Obligations, any Authorized Officer of the
Authority is further authorized to solicit bids for one or more float forward or escrow reinvestmernt
agreements (a "Float Forward Agreement") and to direct the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow
Deposit Agreement(s) or the Trustee, to enter into such Float Forward Agreement or agreements with
the successful bidder or bidders therefor. Pursuant to the terms of any Float Forward Agreement, the
provider, in consideration of an upfront payment to the Escrow Agent or Trustee, as applicable, shall have
the right to sell U.S. Treasury Obligations to the Escrow Agent or the Trustee, at the times and in the
amounts set forth in the Float Forward Agreement at an aggregate purchase price not exceeding the
maturity value thereof. Such U.S. Treasury Obligations shall mature on or before the dates when the
proceeds thereof are needed to make payments in accordance with the Escrow Deposit Agreement(s).
Each Float Forward Agreement shall be awarded to the bidder offering to pay the highest upfront payment
therefor. The form of any Float Forward Agreement shall be as approved by an Authorized Officer of
the Authority, in consultation with Bond Counsel and the Attormey General of the State, An Authorized
Officer of the Authority is further authorized to execute and deliver any such Float Forward Agreement
and/or any certificates or other documents required in connection therewith, Notwithstanding the foregoing,
pothing contained herein shall prohibit an Authorized Officer of the Authority from purchasing both SLGS
and open market U.S. Treasury Obligations, to the extent permitted by law. Bond Counsel and
Underwriter are hereby authorized to act as agent(s), if so directed by an Authorized Officer of the
Authority, on behalf of the Authority for the subscription of SLGS via SLGSafe pursuant to the
regulations promulgated therefore set forth in 31 CFR Part 344.



2.2. Incidental Action.

() The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized to refind the Bonds to be Refunded selected by
Rowan, in consultation with the Authority and its financial advisors; and

(b) the Authorized Officers of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to execute
and deliver such other documents, certificates, directions and notices, and to take such other
action as may be necessary or appropriate in order: (i) to effectuate the execution and delivery of
the Contract of Purchase, the Agreement, the Indenture, the Escrow Deposit Agreement and the
issuance and sale of the Bonds, including, without limitation, documents necessary or
_ appropriate in order to effectuate the issnance and sale of the Bonds; (ii) to implement the DTC
book-entry only system for the Bonds; (iii) to invest the proceeds of the Bonds in Eligible
Investments; and (iv) to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds (including
the preparation and filing of any information reports or other documents with respect to the
Bonds as may at any time be required under Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended and regulations thereunder.

(¢) The Authorized Officers of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to take
such actions from time to time as may be necessary or appropriate to: (i) determine the specific
real and/or personal property to be subject to the Agreement and to accept conveyance of, or
corivey such property to, Rowan or other applicable entity; (ii) grant and execute such consents,
licenses, easements and other actions requested and agreed to by Rowan; and (iii) amend, modify
and supplement documents relating to the Bonds with the consent of Rowan; (iv) execute and
deliver such other documents, certificates, directions and notices, and to take such other action as
may be necessary or appropriate in order to implement actions authorized under paragraphs (1)
through (iv) of this Section 2.2(c) in the form approved by the Authorized Officer(s), execution
being conclusive evidence of approval; provided however that in the case of actions authorized
by paragraphs (i) through (iv) of this Section 2.2(c), the Authority is advised by Bond Counsel
and the Attorney General that the action does not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds or the security of the holder of the Bonds and that the action and dccumentation is
undertaken in accordance with the documentation of the Bonds.

2.3. Extension of Time for Compliance with Certain Environmental Conditions.

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds to be Refunded, the Authority financed the
acquisition of certain parcels of land on which educational facilities were or are to be constructed.
Certain of the parcels; however, required environmental remediation (the “Remediable Subject
Properties”). Rowan agreed to complete the remediation within a designated time period and to
deposit the deeds and certain monies associated with the Remediable Subject Properties with The
Bank of New York Mellon, as the escrow agent (the “Environmental Escrow Agent™), pursuant {o an
environmental escrow agreement dated as of June 17, 2002, as amended (the “Environmental Escrow
Agreement”) by and among the Authority, Rowan and the Environmental Escrow Agent to be held
until remediation is complete. The designated time period will expire in the near future and Rowan
has requested an extension of the designated time period for remediation and the Authority has
determined that such extension is necessary and appropriate for the Authority and Rowan. The



Authority hereby. approves the extension of the time pericd for remediation associated with the
Remediable Subject Properties until such time as a No Further Action Letter is received from the New
Jersey Department of Environmenta! Protection for each Remediable Subject Property. The Authority
further authorizes and directs the Authorized Officers to execute any amendments to the
Environmental Escrow Agreement and any other documents necessary or appropriate to effect the
extension in such form as is accepted by the Authorized Officer executing the same, such execution to
be conclusive evidence of the acceptance thereof.

2.4. Prior Resohztions.

All prior resolutions of the Authority o portions thereof inconsistent herewith are hereby
repealed.

2.5, Effective Date.
This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.

Mr. Hutchinson___ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and read,
which motion was seconded by ___ Mr. Petrecca____and upon roll call the following members voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Joshua Hodes
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)

NAY: " None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Steven D, Weinstein

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Rowan 2011 Refunding - 3/22/11



Draft dated March 12, 2006

NEW .}ERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
b Revenue Refunding Bonds, Rowan University Issue, Series 2011 C

CONTRACT OF PURCHASE

, 2011
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
103 College Road East \
Princeton, New Jersey 08540-6612

Rowan University

Office of the Vice President for Finance and Treasurer
201 Mullica Hill Road

Glassboro, New Jersey 08028

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Morgan Stanely & Co., Inc., as Representative (the “Representative™), on behalf of itself
and Bank of America Merrill Lynch (collectively, the “Underwriters”), hereby offers to enter
into this Contract of Purchase (this “Purchase Contract™) with you, the New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) and Rowan University (the “Public College™), which,
upon your acceptance of this offer, will be binding upon the Authorty, the Public College and
the Underwriters. This offer is made subject to the acceptance by the Authority and the Public
College at or prior to 8:00 p.m., prevailing Eastern Standard time, on the date hereof, and, if not
so accepted, will be subject to w1thdrawal by the Underwriters upon written notice delivered to
the Authority at any time prior to acceptance hereof by the Authority. Certain capitalized terms
used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture
(as defined herein).

I. Purchase and Sale of the Bonds and Payment of Underwriters’ Discount. On the
basis of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements herein contained or referred
to, but subject to the terms and conditions herein set forth, the Underwriters hereby agree to
purchase from the Authonity for offering to the public, and the Authority hereby agrees to sell to
the Underwriters, all (but not less than all) of its § New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Rowan University Issue, Series 2011 C (the
“Bonds™), at an aggregate purchase price equal to § (such purchase price reflecting

" Underwriters® discount of § and a net reoffering [premium] [discount] of

b in connection with the Bonds). The Bonds will be issued under and pursuant to
a Resolution adopted by the Authority on March 22, 2011 (the “Resolution”) and a Trust
Indenture, dated as of , 2011 (the “Indenture”), between the Authority and
, as trustee (the “Trustee™). The Bonds will be issued in the principal amounts,
at interest rates and maturing on and having mandatory sinking fund payments due on the dates,
specified on the Pricing Summary attached as Exhibit A hereto and having the other redemption
provisions as set forth in the Indenture.




471374.1

TRUST INDENTURE
by and between
NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
and
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON,

as Trustee

$[45,000,000]
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Rowan University Issue,

Series 2011 C

Dated
as of

[May 1], 2011



sstigimene

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN

ROWAN UNIVERSITY
AND

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON,
AS DISSEMINATION AGENT AND TRUSTEE

Dated as of [May 1], 2011

Entered into with respect to the

8 | New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Rowan University Issue, Series 2011

471460.1



IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, ROWAN UNIVERSITY ISSUE, SERIES 2011 C
(THE “SERIES 2011 C BONDS™), THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE SERIES
2011 C BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE
OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, [F COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY
TIME. '

THE ORDER AND PLACEMENT OF MATERIALS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT,
[NCLUDING THE APPENDICES, ARE NOT TO BE DEEMED TO BE A DETERMINATION OF
RELEVANCE, MATERIALITY OR IMPORTANCE, AND THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT,
INCLUDING THE APPENDICES, MUST BE CONSIDERED IN ITS ENTIRETY. THE OFFERING
OF THE SERIES 2011 C BONDS IS MADE ONLY BY MEANS OF THIS ENTIRE OFFICIAL
STATEMENT.

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) or Rowan University (the “public College™) to give any information
or to make any representations with respect to the Series 2011°C Bonds, other than those contained in this
Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied
upon as having been authorized by either of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an
offer to sell or the solicitation of any offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Series 2011 C Bonds
by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation
or sale. Certain information contained herein has been obtained from the Public College and other
sources which are believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness and it is
not to be construed as a representation of the Authority. The information set forth herein relative to The
Depository Trust Company (“DTC™) and DTC’s book-entry only system has been supplied to the
Authority by DTC for inclusion herein, and the Authority takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.
Such information has not been independently verified by the Authority and the Authority makes no
representation as to the accuracy or completeness of such information.

The Series 2011 C Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
and neither the Resolution nor the Trust Indenture has been qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of
1939, as amended, in reliance upon certain exemptions contained in such federal laws. In making an
investment decision, investors must rely upon their own examination of the Series 2011 C Bonds and the
security therefor, including an analysis of the risk involved. The Series 2011 C Bonds have not been
recommended by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. The registration,
qualification or exemption of the Series 2011 C Bonds in accordance with applicable provisions of
securities laws of the various jurisdictions in which the Series 2011 C Bonds have been registered,
qualified or exempted cannot be regarded as a recommendation thereof. Neither such jurisdictions or
any of their agencies have passed upon the merits of the Series 2011 C Bonds or the adequacy, accuracy
or completeness of this Official Statement. Any representation to the contrary may be a criminal offense.

The information set forth under the caption “BOND INSURANCE? herein has been provided by
Financial Guaranty Tnsurance Company (“Financial Guaranty” or the “Insurer”). The Authority has not
confirmed the accuracy or completeness of the information relating to the Insurer or the municipal bond
insurance policy to be issued by the Insurer or the payment of the principal amount of (but not redemption
premium, if any) and interest on the Series 2011 C Bonds (the “Policy”). Therefore, the Authority
disclaims any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information relating to the Insurer or
the Policy.



EXHIBIT HI

‘103 COLLEGE RoAD EAST @ PRINCETON, NEw JERSEY 08540
PHONE 609-987-0880 ¢ FAX 609-987-0850 ® jpoole@njefa.com

AT

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY Jim PooLe
B e Executive Director

Date: -March 22, 2011

To:  Members of the Authority

Re:  Acceptance of Bond Counsel Appointment

On March 11, 2011 the Attorney General’s office sent out an RFP to 11 firms to provide
bond counsel services in connection with a refunding bond issue by the Authority on

behalf of Seton Hall University. Responses are due back on March 16, 2011. The
Attorney General received 6 responses. The responsive firms and their fees are as

follows:

Finﬁ o ~ Fee
Gluck Walrath LLP 530,000
McManimon & Scotland, LLC $34,000
Windels Marx Lane & Mittendorf, LLP | $40,000
Obermayer Rebmann Maxwell & Hippel LLP $45,000

Carella, Byrne, Cecchi, Olstein, Brody & Agnello, P.C.  $67,500
McCarter & English. LLP $70,000

You have before you a resolution accepting the Attorney General’s appointment of Gluck
Walrath LLP as bond counsel on the transaction. We hope to bring the resolution
authorizing the issuance of the refunding bonds and the related documents to the
Authority for approval at the Authority’s April board meeting.



RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DESIGNATION OF
BOND COUNSEL BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF
THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY IN CONNECTION WITH
THE ISSUANCE OF REFUNDING BONDS BY THE
AUTHORITY ON BEHALF OF SETON HALL
UNIVERSITY

ADOPTED MARCH 22, 2011

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority™) was
created as a public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey pursuant to the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey
Statutes, as amended and supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-] et seq.; and

WHERFEAS, Seton Hall University (the “University”) has requested that the Authority
begin the process of procuring professionals in connection with the refunding of several series of
outstanding Authority bonds issued for the University which are currently refundable as of April
1, 2011 (the “Financing”); and

. WHEREAS, the Attorney General has, on the basis of a competitive process, designated
the firm of Gluck Walrath LLP to act as Bond Counsel to the Authority in connection with the
Financing; :

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW
JERSEY ED_UCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:

1. Acceptance of the Designation of Bond Counsel by the Attorney General.
The Authority hereby accepts the designation by the Attorney General of Gluck Walrath LLP to
act as Bond Counsel to the Authority in connection with the Financing.

2. Authorization of Action. The Chair, Vice-Chair, Executive Director, Deputy
Executive Director, Treasurer, Director of Project Management, Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Authority, and/or any other person authorized by resolution of the Authority,
and any of such officers designated as “acting” or “interim” (each an “Authorized Officer”), is
authorized to take any and all action necessary or appropriate to implement this Resolution.

3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.



Mir. Petrecca___ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as
introduced and read, which motion was seconded by ___ Mr, Hutchinson __and upon roll call
the following members voted: :

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Joshua Hodes
Andrew Sidamon-FEristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Steven D. Weinstein

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Seton Hall Counsel designation — 3/22/11



EXHIBIT IV

103 CoLLEGE Roap East ® PRINCETON, NEW JERSEY 08540
PHONE 609-987-0880 ° EAX 609-987-0850 ® jpoole@njefa.com

MNEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY Jua PooLe
ez Executive Divector

buiidiang Turuves

Date: March 22,2011

To: Membérs of the Authority

Re:  Acceptance of Counsel Appointment for Monmouth University transaction

On March 2, 2011 the Attorney General’s office sent out an RFP to 11 firms to provide
counsel services in connection with the defeasance of all of the Authority’s outstanding

honds issued on behalf of Monmouth University. On March 10, 2011, 7 responses were
received. The responsive firms and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm ' Fees

McCarter & English, LLP ~ §$8,000

Windles Marz Lane & Mittendorf, LLP $8,000

DeCotis, Fitzpatrick & Cole, LLP $12,500

Gluck Walrath LLP $15000

Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP : $5,000 for each issue to be currently refunded

$10,000 for each issue to be advance refunded
Gibbons, PC $25,000

Obermayer Rebmann Maxwell & Hippel LLP  $45,000

Attached is a resolution accepting the Attorney General’s appointment of McCarter &
English, LLP to serve as counsel on the defeasance. In addition, the resolution appoints
The Bank of New York to serve as escrow agent. The escrow agent is the {rustee on the
bonds being defeased and is not subject to the RFP process.



RESOLUTION APPOINTING A VERIFICATION AGENT
AND ACCEPTING THE DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL BY
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF NEW
JERSEY IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEFEASANCE OF
ALL OF MONMOUTH UNIVERSITY’S OUTSTANDING
BONDS :

ADOPTED MARCH 22, 2011

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) was
created as a public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey pursuant to the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey
Statutes, as amended and supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, Monmouth University (the “University”) has decided to refund all of the
outstanding tax-exempt bonds (the “Bonds™) issued by the Authority for the University (the
“Defeasance™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the resolutions authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, in order
to legally defease the Bonds, a verification report must be prepared and a defeasance opinion
must be issued by counsel; and

WHERKEAS, Authority staff circulated a Request for Proposals for Veriﬁcation.Agent
Services (the “RIFP”) to four firms, posted the RFP on the Authority’s website, and received the
following bids:

Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc. £1,740
BondResource Parters, LP $1,850
Mercadien, P.C. “ $3,000

WHEREAS, the Attorney General has, on the basis of a competitive process, designated
the firm of McCarter & English, LLP to act as Counsel to the. Authority in connection with the
Defeasance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW
JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:

1. Appointment of Verification Agent. Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc. is hereby
appointed to act as verification agent in connection with the Defeasance. :

2. Appointment of Escrow Agent. The Bank of New York Mellon is hereby
appointed to act as escrow agent in connection with the Defeasance.



3. Acceptance of the Designation of Counsel by the Attorney General. The
Authority hereby accepts the designation by the Attorney General of McCarter & English, LLP
to act as Counsel to the Authority in connection with the Defeasance.

4. Anthorization of Action. The Chair, Vice-Chair, Executive Director, Deputy
Execufive Director, Treasurer, Director of Project Management, Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Authority, and/or any other person authorized by resolution of the Authority,
and any of such officers designated as “acting” or “interim” (each an “Authorized Officer™), is
authorized to take any and all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the Defeasance or to
implement this Resolution.

5. Prior Actions Ratified. All actions previously undertaken by the Authorized
Officers in implementing the financing of the Project authorized by this Resolution are hereby
ratified and confirmed.

. Eifective Date. This Resolufion shall take effect in accordance with the Act.

Mr, Hutchinson___ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced
and read, which motion was seconded by ___Mr. Petrecea and upon roli call the following members
voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Joshua Hodes |
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Steven D. Weinstein

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Monmouth Counsel designation - 3/22/11



EXHIBIT V

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIGRAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
ACCEPTING AND ADOPTING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUBDITORS’ REPORT FOR 2010

MARCH 22, 2011

WHEREAS: The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”)
annually prepares financial statements and this year engaged the
independent auditing firm of Ernst & Young, LLP (the “Independent
Auditors”) to perform an audit of the Authority’s financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2010 (the “2010 Financial Statements”);
and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Commiitee have received and
reviewed the 2010 Financial Statements and the unqualified Report of the
Independent Auditors thereon dated March 2011 (the “Independent
Auditors’ Report™); and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have met with
representatives of the Independent Auditors and have discussed with
them the 2010 Financial Statements and the Independent Auditors’
Report; and : ~

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority have received the 2010 Financial
Statements and the Independent Auditors’ Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have recommended
that the members of the Authority accept the 2010 Financial Statements
and the Independent Auditors’ Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority wish to accept and adopt the 2010
Financial Statements and the Independent Auditors” Report.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Authority hereby accepts and adopts the 2010 Financial Statements
and the Tndependent Auditors’ Report, as attached hereto and
incorporated by reference as if set forth in full herein.

SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect in accordance with N.J.S.A, 18A:72A-
4(3).



Mr. Hutchinson __moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced
and read, which motion was seconded by ___ Mr. Petrecca__ and upon roll call the following
members voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Joshua Hodes
Andrew Sidamon-FEristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)

NAY: " None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Steven D, Weinstein

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Auditors’ report - 3/22/11



EXHIBIT VI

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
2011 BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS
FOR THE MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2011

Executive Summary

The NJEFA concluded the first month of 2011 with net operating income in the amount
of $94,021, based on revenues of $281,729 and expenses of $187,708. As a result, net
operating income is slightly less than budgeted. This difference is a result of less than expected
revenues in the amount of $25,570 partially offset by less than budgeted expenses in the
amount of $20,605. :

Revenues

Revenues were below budget for the month -of January due to lower than expected Initial
Fees Income. '

Expenses

Operating expenditures for the first month of the year were favorable as compared to
budget by $20,605.. Most of the line items display positive deviations and are primarily the result
of timing.



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
ACTUAL vs. BUDGET REPORT

JANUARY 2011
Month Ended
January 31, 2011
Actual Budget Variance
~ Operating Revenues
Annual Adminisirative Fees $279,924 § 279,924 § -
Initial Fees - 26,250 {26,250)
nvestment Income 1,805 1,125 680
‘ $ 281729 § 307,299 § (25,570)
Operating Expenses

Salaries $ 403,023 § 111,284 § 7,361
Empioyee Benefiis 30,435 33,863 3,528
Provision for Post Ret. Health Benefits 12,500 12,500 -
Office of The Governor 1,500 1,500 -
Office of The Attorney General 4,667 4,667 -
~ Sponsored Programs - 1,250 1,250
Telephone - 2,208 2,208
Gasoline & Auto Maintenance 124 400 278
Rent 18,184 19,667 1,483
Utilities 1,687 1,792 105
Postage 32 200 168
Office Supplies & Expenses 254 500 246
Travel & Official Receptions 194 200 5
Staff Training & Tuition Reimbursement - 200 200
tnsurance 1,137 2,87F 1,736
Annual Report & Newsletters - 2,417 2,417
Public Relations - 750 750
Professional Services : 400 400
Dues & Subscriptions 7,402 3,542 {3,860}
Data Processing - - -
Maintenance of Egquipment 1,336 3,667 2,331
Depreciation 4,333 4,333 .
Contingency ‘ - - -
187,708 208,313 20,605
Net Operating Income $ 94021 § 98,986 3 (4,965
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
2011 BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS
FOR TWO MONTHS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2011

.Executive Sumimary

The NJEFA conciuded the first two months of 2011 with net operating income in the
amount of $176,084, based on revenues of $578,460 and expenses of $402,376. As a result,
net operating income is higher than budgeted by $8,099. This difference is a resuit of less than
budgeted expenses in the amount of $44,237 partially offset by less than expected revenues in
the amount of $36,138.

Revenues

Revenues were below budget for the first two months of the year due to lower than
expected Initial Fee Income.

Expenses

Operating expenditures for the first two months of the year were favorable as compared
io budget by $44,237. Most of the fine itemns display positive deviations and are primarily the
result of timing. ‘ . ' '



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
ACTUAL vs. BUDGET REPORT

Operating Revenues
Annual Administrative Fees

Initial Fees
Investment Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries

Empioyee Benefits

Provision for Post Rel. Healih Benefits
Office of The Governor

Office of The Attorney Generat
Sponsored Programs
Telepheone

Gasoline & Auto Maintenance
Rent

Utilities

Postage

Office Supplies & Expenses
Trave! & Official Receptions
Staff Training & Tuition Reimbursement
insurance

Annual Report & Newsietters
Public Relations

Professional Services

Dues & Subscriptioné

Data Processing

Maintenance of Equipment
Depreciation

Contingency

Net Operating Income

FEBRUARY 2011

Montih Ended
February 28, 2011

Two Months Ended
February 28, 2011

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
$ 279,924 $279924 § - $ 559,848 $ 559,848 $ -
15,000 26,250 (11,250} 15,000 52,500 (37,500}
1,807 1,125 682 3,612 2,250 1,362

$ 206,731 $307,292 § (10,568) $ 578460 § 614,598 $ (36,138)
$ 104,747 $111,284 § 6537 $ 208670 § 222,568 $ 13,898
32,246 33,963 1,717 62,681 67,926 5,245
12,500 12,500 25,000 25,000 .
1,500 1,500 . 3,000 3,000 -
4,667 4,667 - 9,334 9,334 -

- 1,250 1,250 - 2,500 2,500

1,629 2,208 579 1,629 4,416 2,787

450 1,555 1,105 574 1,955 1,381
18,184 19,667 1,483 36,368 39,334 2,966
1,686 1,792 106 3,373 3,584 211

107 527 420 139 727 588
4,309 3,864 (445) 4,563 4,364 (199}
841 2,208 1,368 1,035 2,409 1374

- 2,345 2,345 - 2,545 2,545

2,872 2,873 1 4,009 5,746 1,737
2,430 2,417 (13) 2,430 4,834 2,404

' - 750 750 - 1,500 1,500
16,656 17,387 731 16,656 17,787 1,131
1,357 3,542 2,185 8,759 7,084 {(1,675)
3,500 4,000 500 3,500 4,000 500
654 3,667 3,013 1,990 7,334 5,344
4,333 4,333 - 8,666 8,666 -

$ 214,668 §$238,300 $ 23,632 $ 402376 $ 446,613 $ 44,237
$ 82,063 § 68,999 $ 13,084 $ 176084 $ 167,985 $ 8,099
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Report of Management

Management of the Authority is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation
of these financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and, consequently, they reflect
certain amounts based upon the best estimates and judgment of management.

The financial statements have been audited by the independent firm of Emst & Young LLP,
which was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes
of all meetings of the Authority. The independent auditor’s opinion is presented on page 2.

The Authority maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization, that financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, that assets of the Authority are properly safeguarded, and that the covenants of all
financing agreements are honored. There are, however, inherent limitations in the effectiveness
of any system of internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention
of conirols. Accordingly, even an effective internal control system can provide only reasonable
assurance that its goals are achieved.

Consistent with Executive Order No. 122, the Authority, through its Audit and Evaluation
Committees, engages the independent auditors. The Audit and Evaluation Committees comprise
individuals who are not employees of the Authority, and who meet certain standards of
independence and financial expertise. The Audit Committee periodically meets with both the
independent auditors and the internal auditors, and is responsible for assisting the Members of
the Authority in overseeing the Authority’s compliance with legal, regulatory and ethical
requirements, as well as overseeing the integrity and quality of the Authority’s financial
statements. Both the independent auditors and the internal auditors have unrestricted access to
the Audit Committee. : ’

g MuaniePiu oy

(f arfa‘es Poole Marie P. Mueller
“Bxecutive Director ~ Controller

March , 2011



Report of Independent Auditors -

To the Members of the
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority, a component unit of the State of New Jersey, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and
the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, and cash flows for
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards penerally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Our. audits included consideration of
‘ntemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amouats and disclosures in the financial staternents, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the New Jersey FEducational Facilities Authority as of December 31,
2010 and 2009, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 10, 2010, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Management’s discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress, on pages 4 to O,
and page 19, respectively are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding methods of measurement and presentation of this required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplemental financial information is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statemnents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

March 10, 2011



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Introduction

This section of the New Jersey BEducational Facilities Authority’s (the Authority’s) annual
financial report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial
performance during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 and the two immediately preceding
years. It should be read in comjunction with the Authority’s financial statements and
accompanying notes. ‘

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Authority is supported entirely by fees charged for the services it provides. Accordingly, the
Authority is considered an Enterprise Fund and utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. The
Basic Financial Statements for an Enterprise Fund include: Balance Sheets; Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets; and Statements of Cash Flows. These
statements provide, respectively, a view of the Authority’s financial position as of the end of the
year, a description of the financial activity during the year, and a description of the cash activity
during the year.

Condensed Financial Information

The following table represents condensed balance-sheet information and changes between
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010 and between December 31, 2008 and December 31,
2010:

Increase Increase
_ (Decrease) (Decrease)
20140 2009 2008 2009 to 2010 2008 to 2010
Current assets $ 11,478,450 §$ 10,332,098 § 9,686,984 11.09% 18.49%
Noncurrent assets 140,939 168,072 210,313 (16.14%%) (32.99%)
Total assets 11,619,389 10,500,170 9,897,257 10.66% 17.40%
Current Liabilities 292,387 315,304 334,945 (7.27%) (12.71%)
Noncurrent liabilities 254,632 137,740 132,021 84.86% 92.87%
Total liabilities 547,019 453,044 466,966 20.74% 17.14%
Total net assets $ 11,072,370 § 10,047,126 § 9,430,331 10.20%%6 17.41%




The following table represents condensed information from the Statements of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and changes between 2009 and 2010 and between

2008 and 2010:

Increase Iocrease
(Decrease) (Decrease)
2010 2009 2008 2009 io 2010 2008 10 2010
Operating revenues: :
Administrative fees $ 3,710,465 § 3,360,604 § 3,351,932 10.41% - 10.70%
Total operating revenues 3,710,465 3,360,604 3,351,932 ‘
Operating expenses:
Salaries and related expenses 1,884,807 1,840,368 1,817,110 241% 3.72%
Provision for {benefit from)
postemployment benefits 120,000 95,554 (220,790) 25.58% 154.35%
General expenses 694,480 825,642 567,372 (15.89%) {28.21%)
Total operating expenses 2,699,287 2,761,564 2,563,692 (2.25%) 5.29%
Net operating income : ' 1,011,178 599,040 788,240 68.80% 28.28%
Nongperating revenues: .
Investment income 14,066 17,755 223,087 (20.78%0} (93.69%)
Change in net assets 1,025,244 616,795 1,011,327 66.22% 1.38%
“Net assets beginning of year 10,047,126 9,430,331 8,419,004 6.54% 19.34%
et assets end of year $ 11,072,370 $ 10,047,126 § 9,430,331 10.20% 17.41%

Analysis of Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations
The Authority’s solid financial position and strong operating results continued.

Financial Highlights:

- The Authority issued over $530 million of conduit debt for educational institutions during
2010.

»  Net Assets increased $1,025,244, or 10.2% in 2010.

»  The Authority’s 2010 operating margin (operating income as a percentage of operating
revenues) was 27.25%.

o At 12/31/2010, Net Assets represent 4.10 times 2010 Total Operating Expenses.



During 2010, the Authority’s financing activity was $42 million greater than 2009 volume and
included over $79 million in Build America Bonds. The Authority continued to work with the
State’s public and private institutions on their multi-year plans to invest in the upgrading of their
capital facilities, technology infrastructures and capital equipment to accommodate growing
demand for higher education. The Authority also helped New Jersey colleges and universities
restructure outstanding issues for the greatest benefit to the institutions.

Revenues

The Authority’s revenues are derived primarily from two fees; annual fees charged to existing
bond issues, and initial fees charged with respect to the issuance of new debt. Total revenues for
2010 increased almost $350,000 from 2009 and $358,000 from 2008.

Expenses

Operating expenses in 2010 decreased 2.3% from 2009 but increased 5.3% from 2008. The
decrease in operating expenses from 2009 is primarily related to lower general, administrative
and professional fee expenses. )

Assets and Liabilities

Net assets increased $1.025 million, or 10.2% from 2009 to 2010 and $1.6 million, or 17.4%
from 2008 to 2010.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Office of the Controller, New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority, 103 College Road East,
Princeton, NJ  08540-6612. Readers are invited fo visit the Authority’s website at
www.njefa.com. :



Assets
Current assets:
Cash

New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Balance Sheets

Investments, principally U.S. Government obligations

Fees receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation of
$578,497 and $546,911 during 2010 and 2009,

respectively

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Noncurrent iiabilities:

Postemployment benefits other than pension

Project obligations

Total noncurrent liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted

Invested in capital assets

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

December 31

2010 2009
$ 64,116 3 65,486
11,388.904 10,145,780
8,310 79,130
17,120 41702
11,478,450 10,332,098
140,935 168,072

$ 11,619,389

$ 10,500,170

§ 292387 $ 315304
218,480 08,480
36,152 39,260
254,632 137,740
10,931,431 9,879,054
140,939 168,072
11,072,370 10,047,126

$ 11,619,389

$ 10,500,170



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New J ersey)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets

Operating revenues:
Administrative fees
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses: ‘
Salaries and related expenses
General and administrative expenses
Provision for postemployment benefits

. Professional fees

Total operating expenses

Net operating income

Nonoperating revenue:
Investment income

Net changes in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Yesar Ended December 31
2010 2009

$ 3,710,465 $ 3,360,604
3,710,465 3,360,604
1,884,807 1,840,368
602,021 716,441
120,000 95,554
92,459 109,201
2,699,287 2,761,564
1,011,178 599,040
14,066 17,755
1,025,244 616,795
10,047,126 9,430,331

$ 11,672,370

$ 10,047,126




New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31
2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activiiies ,
Cash received from administrative fees ‘ $ 3,805.867 § 3,297,753
Cash payments for operating expenses (2,549,426) (2,698,188)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,256,441 599,565
Cash flows from investing activities ‘
Purchase of investments - (42,293,966) (21,634,090)
Sale and maturity of investments ‘ 41,051,396 21,026,116
Investment income 13,512 42,511
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (1,229,058) (565,463)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities :
Purchase of capital assets | (28,753) (27,783)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities {(28,753) (27,783)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (1,370) 6,319
Cash at beginning of year 65,486 59,167
Cash at end of year $ 64,116 $ 65,486
Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities: ‘
Net operating income $ 1,011,178 $ 599,040

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 55,886 70,024
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Fees receivable and prepaids 95,402 (55,577)
Accounts payable (22,917) (19,641)
Project obligations (3,108) (89,835)
Postemployment benefits obligation 120,000 95,554
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities ' $ 1,256,441 § 599,565
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing activities
Change in fair value of mvestments $ 554 3 (24,756)

See accompanying nofes.



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2010

1. Organization and Function of the Authority

The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”), a component unit of the State
of New Jersey, was created under the provisions of Chapter 106 of New Jersey Public Laws of
1966 as a public body corporate and politic. The powers of the Authority permit the sale of
notes, bonds and other obligations to support the construction, acquisition and equipping of
educational facilities for public and private institutions of higher education in the State of New
Jersey. The Authority is also authorized, pursuant to statutory amendments, to issue State
supported bonds to fund matching grants to qualified public libraries for capital improvements.
The obligations issued by the Authority are not guaranteed by, nor do they constitute a debt or
obligation of, the State of New Jersey. '

The Authority is exempt from both federal and state taxes.
2. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounts are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

In its accounting and financial reporting, the Authority follows the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Private-sector standards of accounting and
financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989 are followed by the Authority to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or eontradict guidance of the GASB.

Administi'ative Fees

The Authority charges administrative fees to its client institutions for which bond and note sales
have been completed. Such fees are considered operating revenue and are charged for services
related to the structuring and administration of Authority financings, investment management of
bond proceeds, monitoring of financial performance and other project costs and services. These
fees are recognized as earned. The fees are used to provide sufficient funds to ensure that the
Authority’s operating expenses will be met, and that sufficient reserves will be available to
provide for the Authority’s needs.

Depreciation

Furniture and equipment are carried at cost and depreciated over their useful lives using the
straight-line method.
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‘New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Cash and Investments

At year-end, the Authority’s bank balance was $67,698 all of which was covered by FDIC
insurance.

The types of securities which are permitted investments for Authority funds are established by
New Jersey Statutes. All funds of the Authority may be invested in obligations of, or guaranteed
by, the United States Government. In addition, certain funds of the Authority may be invested mn:
obligations of agencies of the U.5. government, obligations of, or guaranteed by, the State of '
New Jersey; collateralized certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements; comumercial paper;
and other securities which shall be authorized for the investment of funds in the custody of the
Treasurer of the State of New Jersey.

Investments of the Authority comprise the following:

2010 2009
[nvestments: )
U.S. Treasury Bills $11,387,857 $10,145,355
Money Market Mutual Fund 1,047 425
Total investrments $11,388,904 510,145,780

In 2010 and 2009, the Authority had $1,047 and $425, respectively, invested in a money market
mutual fund, which invests in short-term and other obligations of the U.S. Treasury. All
investments are carried at fair value.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40 “Deposit and
Investment Risk Disclosures” (“GASB 407), the Authority has assessed the Custodial Credit
Risk, the Concentration of Credit Risk, Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk of its Cash and
Investments.

(a) Custodial Credit Risk ~ The Authority’s deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if
they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are: uncollateralized,
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but
not in the depositor-government’s name. The deposit risk is that, in the event of the

11



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New | ersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Cash and Investments (continued)

failure of a depository financial institution, the Authority will not be able to recover
deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. The Authority’s investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if
the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the Authority and are held
by either: the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the
Authority’s name. The risk is that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. '

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Authority’s bank balances were not exposed to
custodial credit risk since the full amount was covered by FDIC insurance.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Authority’s investments consisted of U.S.
Treasury Bills in the amount of $11,387,857 and $10,145,355, respectively. Since the
investments are registered in the Authority’s name they are not exposed to custodial
credit risk. The Authority does not have a written policy for investment securities
custodial credit risk but its practice has been to maintain a safekeeping account for the
securities at a financial institution. :

(b) Concentration of Credit Risk — This is the risk associated with the amount of investments
the Authority has with any one issuer that exceed five percent of its total investments.
Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in
mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from
this requirement. The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one
issuer, but its practice has been to invest, almost exclustvely, in U.S. Treasury Securities.
At December 31, 2010 or 2009, the Authority was not exposed to a concentration of
credit risk.

(¢) Credit Risk ~ GASB 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt
security investments except for obligations of the 1J.S. government or obligations
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government. This is the misk that an issuer or other
counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. In general, the Authority
does not have an investment policy regarding credit risk except to the extent previously
outlined under the Authority’s investment policy. The Authority’s Money Market Mutual
Fund is not rated.

12



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Cash and Investments (continued)

(d) Interest Rate Risk — This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. The Authority does not have a written policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from interest rate fluctuations, but the Authority does from time to time evaluate ifs
investment portfolio to determine if, based on the interest rate environment, other investment
vehicles would provide higher yields that lower the cost and risk. As of December 31, 2010,
the U.8. Treasury Bills had maturities ranging from March 10, 2011 through July 28, 2011.

For the vears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, investment income comprised the following:

2010 2009
Interest eamnings $ 13,5127 § 42511
Net increase(decrease) in fair value of mvestments 554 (24,756)

§ 14,066 $ 17,755

4. Retirement Plans

The Authority’s employees participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of New
Jersey (PERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The Authority’s
contribution is determined by State statute and is based upon an actuarial computation performed
by the PERS. All benefits are established by State statute. The Authority’s required contribution
and pension expense for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $119,428,
$93,726 and $77,042, respectively. Employees of the Authority also contribute a percentage of
their wages to the pension system; the percentage range of confributions, as determined by
PERS, was 5.5% for 2010, 2009 and 2008.

The PERS is administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The Division issues
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to: State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions
and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.

Employees hired after July 1, 2007 participate in PERS, the defined benefit plan, up to the annual
maximum wage for social security. The employee contributions based on wages in excess of the

13



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

' Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Retirement Plans (confinued)

anmual maximum wage are contributed to the Defined Contribution Retirement Program
(DCRP}. The Authority contributes 3% to the participants’ accounts on wages in excess of the
social security limit. :

Tn addition to the Plans noted above, employees may elect to make tax-deferred contributions to
a 457 deferred compensation plan.

5. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension

The Authority, as permitted by Chapter 88, P.L. 1974 as amended by Chapter 436, P.L. 1981,
provides postemployment medical benefits for eligible retired employees through participation in
the New Jersey Health Benefits Program as sponsored and administered by the State of New
Jersey. The Authority does not issue a publicly available financial report for the plan which for
financial reporting purposes is considered a single employer defined benefit health care plan.
Employees become eligible for these benefits upon retirement after 25 years of creditable service
" in the PERS.

Benefit provisions for the plan are established and amended by the Authority’s Members, and
there is no statutory requirement for the Authority to continue this plan for future Authority
employees. The plan is a non-contributory plan with all payments for plan benefits being funded
by the Authority.

The Authority applies the accounting provisions of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This
statement establishes guidelines for reporting costs associated with “other postemployment
benefits” (OPEB). OPEB costs are actuarially calculated based on benefits (other than pensions),
that current and retired employees have accrued as a result of their respective years of
employment service.

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost for the plan is calculated based on the annual required
contribution “ARC?”, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, 15
projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or

14



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Postemploynient Benefits Other Than Pension (continued)

funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The Authority’s annual OPEB cost for
the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related information for the plan are as

follows {dollar amoumts in thousands):

2010 2009
Annual required contribution (benefit) $ 120 $ 95
Contfributions made - -
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 120 95
Net OPEB obligation — beginning of year 98 3
Net OPEB obligation — end of year . $ 218 $ 98

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan
 and the net OPEB obligations for fiscal years 2007 through 2010 were as follows (dollar

amounts in thousands):

Annual Percentage of
OPEB Cost . Anncal OFEB Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended (Benetit) Cost Contributed Obligation
December 31,2010 $ 120 0.00% § 218
December 31, 2009 $ 95 0.00% $ 98
December 31, 2008 § (221) N/A $ 3
December 31, 2007 $ 156 14.20% $ 2,224

In April 2008, the Authority established and funded an itrevocable frust in the amount of
$2,000,000 to pay for the employee postemployment medical benefits. At December 31, 2010
and 2009, the fair value of this trust fund was $1,966,023 and $1,993,464, respectively. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the actuarial liability for benefits was $2,218,480 and $2,098,480,
respectively, which, due to the establishment of the trust, is now approximately 95% funded.
The difference of 5% is reported as a liability on the Authority’s books.

The most recent actuarial valuation date is January 1, 2008, Actuarial valuations involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension (continued)'

Future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding
progress presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear trend information
that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time -
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern
of sharing benefit costs between the Authority and the plan members to that point. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

For the January 1, 2008 actuarial valuaﬁon-, the Authority continued to use the actuarial
assumptions of a 4% discount rate and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9% grading down
to an ultimate rate of 5% in 2012.

At December 31, 2010, the Plan had 19 participants of which 16 were active employees and 3
were retirees. Of the Plan participants, 3 retirces and 2 active employees were eligible to receive
benefits.

16



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Conduit Debt

Due fo the fact that the bonds and notes issued by the Authority are nonrecourse conduit debt
obligations of the Authority, the Authority has, in effect, none of the risks and rewards of the
related financings. Accordingly, with the exception of certain fees generated as a result of the
- financing transaction, the financing transaction is given no accounting recognition in the
accompanying financial statements. At December 3 i, 2010, the amount of conduit debt
outstanding totaled $5,473,925,526.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Authority has an operating lease commitment for its offices at an annual rental of
approximately $218,212 through December 31, 2016.

The Authority, in the normal course of business, is involved in various legal matters. Under the
terms of the agreements between the Authority and the public and private institutions of higher
education, any costs associated with litigation are the obligation of the institution involved. It is
the opinion of the Authority after consultation with Jegal counsel that its financial position will
not be adversely affected by the ultimate outcome of any existing legal proceedings.

8. Net Assets

The Authority’s net assets represent the excess of assets over liabilities and are categorized as
follows:

. Tnvested in Capital Assets are the amounts expended by the Authority for the acquisition
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

. Unrestricted Net Assets are the remaining net assets, which can be further categorized as
designated or undesignated. Designated assets are not governed by statute or contract but
are committed for specific purposes pursuant to Authority policy and/or directives.
Designated assets include funds and assets committed to working capital.

17



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

8. Net Assets (continued)

The Members of the Authority passed three resolutions between 1995 and 2008 to designate a
portion of the Authority’s operating fund balance as a reserve to facilitate the normal operations
.of the Authority and for counsel and consultants, if needed, in the event of difficulties
experienced by the Authority or any of its client colleges. At December 31, 2010 the amount
* designated for this purpose is $5,500,000.

Changes in Net Assets

The changes in net assets are as follows:

Invested
im Capital
Assets Unrestricted ‘Total

Net assets at December 31, 2008 $ 210,313 $ 9,220,018 § 9,430,331

Net asset change - 616,795 616,795

Capital asset additions 27,783 (27,783) -

Depreciation (70,024) 70,024 -
Net assets at December 31, 2009 168,072 9,879,054 10,047,126

Net asset change , - 1,025,244 1,025,244

Capital asset additions 28,753 (28,753) -

Depreciation ' (55,886) 55,886 -
Net assets at December 31, 2010 § 140,939 $10,931,431 § 11,072,370

9. Subsequent Event

At its repular meeting of March 22, 2011, the Members of the Authority passed a resolution
anthorizing the use of $8.0 million of available funds to provide the State of New Jersey with a
portion of the debt service payment in support of several programs benefiting the State’s
institutions of higher education.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New J ersey)

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Healthcare Plan

(Dollars in Thousands)
Actuarial
: Accrued
Actuarial Liability TUAAL as a
Actuoarial Vahie of (AAL)—Level Unfunded Funded Covered FPercentage of
Valuation Assels Dollar  AAL(UAAL) Ratie Payroll Covered
Date (a) (b} {b-a) {a/b) (3] Payroli (b-a)/c
January 1, 2008 5 - § 1,826 $ 1,826 0% § 1415 129%
January 1, 2006 e 2,050 2,090 0 1,269 165

Note: In April 2008, the Authority established and funded an imevocabie trust in the amount of $2 million. At December 31, 2010, the

fair value of this trust was $1,966,023.
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New Jersey Educational Faciliiies Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Balance Sheets — Trustee Held Funds

December 31
2010 2009

Asgefs

Cash $ - 3 729
Investments, principally U.S. Government obligations 729,451,952 574,625,825
Accrued interest receivable ' 74,317 288,997
Due from colleges and universities 20,073 213,255
Loans and leases receivable - 5,431,878,442 5,147,581,178
U.S. Government debt service subsidies receivable 178,420 45,375

$6,161,603,204  §$5,722,755,359

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 26,772,994 § 33,757,726

Accrued interest payable ' _ 111,349,887 106,499,525

Bonds and notes payable 5,473,925,526 5,184,511,177

Funds held in trust 549,554,797 367,986,931
$6,161,603,204  $5,722,755,359

The accompanying notes to supplemental financial statements are an integral part of this siatement.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statements of Changes in Trustee Held Funds

Funds held in frust at beginning of year

Additions:
Proceeds from sale of bonds and issuance of notes:
Par amount 522,831,972 492,188,943
Bond premium (discount), net 22,840,716 (8,803,828)
Annual loan and rental requirements 422,891,484 380,033,459
Investment income 2,647,094 9,505,358
U.S. Government debt service subsidies 1,292,070 276,713
Change in investment valuation reserve (236,773) (4,146,948)
Total additions 972,266,563 869,053,697
Deductions:
Debt service:
Interest 255,321,477 244,643,639
Principal 171,777,333 157,599,212
Project costs 305,886,301 542.918,314 -
Issuance costs 4,323,546 20,764,312
Administrative fees 3,154,642 3,093,025
College and university (contributions) retumed 7,381,193 663,547
Transfers to escrow accounts for defeasance of :
refunded issues 72,854,205 412,548,063
Total deductions . 820,698,697 1,382,230,112
Increase(Decrease) in funds held in trust 151,567,866 (513,176,415)

Year Ended December 31

2010

2009

$ 397,986,931

$ 911,163,346

Funds held in trust at end of year $ 549,554,797 § 397,986,931

The accompanying notes to supplemental financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New I ersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements

December 31, 2010

1. Iniroduction

Under the terms of the Authority’s enabling legislation, the Authority has the power to issue
bonds and notes on behalf of public and private institutions of higher education in the State of
New Jersey. The obligations issued by the Authority are conduit debt and are not guaranteed by,
nor do they constitute a debt or obligation of, the State of New Jersey.

Because the bonds and notes issued by the Authority are nonrecourse conduit debt obligations of
the Authority, the Authority has, in effect, none of the risks and rewards of the related
financings. The supplemental financial statements presented herein include information
‘pertaining to funds held by Trustees of the various bond and note issuances of the Authority.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The Trustee Held Funds as presented is an agency fund and as such is custodial in nature and
does not present results of operations and utilizes the accrual basis of accounting.

3. Funds Held in Trust

Funds beld in trust include amounts in the construction, debt service and debt service reserve
funds and the renewal and replacement accounts established for each bond issue. Balances
maintained in the construction funds represent unexpended proceeds allocated for specific
projects; the debt service fund, debt service reserve fund, and renewal and replacement account
balances represent amounts reserved for payment of debt service and the renewal and
replacement of major components of projects as required by the provisions of the various series
resolutions. The following is a schedule of the aggregate funds held in trust as of December 31,
2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Construction funds $ 433,028,449 §$ 276,160,776
Debt service funds 17,650,124 18,859,617
Debt service reserve funds 88,636,986 95,513,276
Renewal and replacement accounts 18,239,238 17,453,262

$ 549,554,797 § 397,986,931
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

4, Cash and Investments |

Investments permitted in the Trustee Held Funds are authorized by the respective Bond
Resolutions. All funds held by the trustees may be invested in obligations of, or guaranteed by,
the United States Government. In addition, certain funds may be invested in: obligations of
agencies of the U.S. government; obligations of, or guaranteed by, the State of New Jersey;
collateralized certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements; commercial paper; and other
securitics which shall be authorized for the investment of funds in the custody of the Treasurer of

the State of New Jersey.

Investments held by trustees are carried at fair value and comprise the following:

2010 2009
Investments: :
Collateralized investment agreements $ 2,474,556 % 1,364,000
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations* 726,977,396 573,261,825
Total investments $ 729,451,952 $ 574,625,625

+ Includes $148.253.486 and $123,909,347 of investments in pooled U.S. Treasury funds at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, which are uncategorized.

5. Loans and Leases Receivable

Since its inception, the Authority has issued obligations of $12,666,342,299 and
$12,143,510,327 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, for the benefit of various
public and private institutions of higher education. The obligations are secured by loans,
mortgages, leases and other agreements, the terms of which generally correspond to the
amortization of the related bond issues.

The loans and mortgages are secured by revenues produced by the facilities and by other legally
available funds of the institutions. The Authority is the owner of those projects under lease
agreements. It is the intention of the Authority to transfer title in the projects at the expiration of
the leases. Accordingly, the Jeases are being accounted for as financing transactions.
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

5, Loans and Leases Receivable (continued)

Resiricted fund receivables comprisé the following:

Loans:
Institute for Advanced Study
Princeton University
Mortgages:
Caldwell College
Centenary College
College of Saint Elizabeth
Drew University
Fairleigh Dickinson University
Felician College
Georgian Court University
Institte for Defense Analyses
Monmouth University
New Jersey Institute of Technology
Princeton Theological Seminary
Rider University
Saint Peter’s College
Seton Hall Universty
Stevens Institute of Technology
University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey
Leases:
Kean University
Montclair State University
New Jersey City University (formerly Jersey City State College)
Passaic County Community College :
Ramapo College of New Jersey
Rowan University {formerly Glassboro State College)
Thomas Edison State College
The College of New Jersey
The Richard Stockton College of New Jersey
The William Paterson University of New Jersey
Equipment Leasing Fund
Higher Education Capital Improvement Fund
Higher Education Facilities Trust Fund
County College Capital Projects Fund
Dormitory Safety Trust Fund
Library Grant Program

December 31

2010 2009
57,695,000 60,310,000
1,611,517,500 1,403,557,500
19,035,000 19,700,000
37,971,773 24,694,521
22,990,000 23,590,000

65,173,311 60,225,943 -

98,106,970 101,465,252
9,000,000 6,570,000
29,069,124 30,282,199
13,670,000 14,135,000
13,535,000 15,145,000
142,202,500 131,580,000
106,000,000 39,432,500
49,205,000 51,825,000
42,777,228 43,792,428
121,354,748 129,486,553
76,882,500 77,192,500
258,075,000 258,075,000
346,277,791 340,206,833
350,385,000 355,250,000
134,215,000 106,345,000

13,635,000 -
226,620,490 233,241,219
320,492,500 328,775,000
2,395,507 2,307,190
365,385,000 324,832,500
248,069,000 251,741,500
163,882,500 170,417,500
450,000 940,000
409,105,000 432,680,000
— 20,460,000
8,580,000 10,485,000
34,520,000 40,170,000
33,605,000 35,670,000

$ 5,431,878,442

$ 5,i47,581,178
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable

Bonds, notes and leases payable comprise the following:

Original Final _ Amount Qutstanding
Issue Maturity  Net Effective December 31
Issue Amount Date Interest Rate 2010 2000
Bonds Payable
Caldwell Coliege:
2006 Series F 21,400,000 7/1/2032 Variable 19,035,000 § 19,700,000
-Centenary College:
2003 Series A 14,775,060 10/1/2033 Variable 10,490,000 10,990,600
2006 Series T 9,154,113 11/1/2036 Varable 8,020,363 9,040,363
2007 Series B 4,784,617 11/1/2036 Variable 4,587,410 4,664,158
2010 Series D 13,974,000  1/1/2041 Variable 13,974,000 -
Drew University:
2003 Series C 20,855,000 7/1/2021 3.888% 14,275,000 18,110,000
2007 Series D 29,135,000 7/1/2037 4.601% 27,055,000 28,530,000
2008 Series B 10,765,000  7/1/2017 4.234% 10,165,000 10,765,000
2008 Series { 40,000,000 6/25/2018 Variable 8,265,830 3,603,443
2010 Series C ‘ 15,580,000 6/1/2024 Variable 5,369,981 -
Dormitory Safety Trust Fund: '
Series 2001 A 67,970,000 3/1/2016 4239% 29,130,000 33,985,000
Series 2001 B - taxabie 5,800,000  3/1/2016 6.117% 2,430,000 2,895,000
Series 2003 A 5,440,000 3/1/2018 3.752% 2,910,000 3,290,000
Equipment Leasing Fund:
Series 2003 A 12,620,000 9/1/2011 2.517% 450,000 940,000
Fairleigh Dickinson University:
2002 Series D 63,650,000 7/1/2032 6.114% 56,830,000 58,100,000
2004 Series C 35,285,000  7/1/2023 5.534% 28,820,000 30,355,000
2006 Series G 14,505,000 7/1/2028 4.954% 13,215,000 13,665,000
2006 Series H 2,147,554 7/1/2027 4.954% 936,970 972,792
Felician College:
2006 Series 11,445,000 11/1/2022 4,749% 9,050,000 9,615,000
Georgian Court University:
1998 Sexies, Project B 6,455,000  7/172015 4.198% 1,525,000 2,170,000
2003 Serjes, Project C 15,215,000 7/1/2033 5.991% 905,000 905,000
2007 Series D 26,980,000  7/1/2037 5.022% 26,390,000 26,780,000
2007 SeriesH 1,650,000 10/1/2022 5.296% 891,624 944,699
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Tersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable (continued)

Original Final Amount Outstanding
Issue Matnrity  Net Effective December 31
Issue Amount Date Interest Rate 2010 2009
Bonds Payable (continued)
Higher Education Facilities
Trust Fund: )
Series 2005 A § 590,680,000 9/1/2010 3.286% - 20,460,000
Higher Education Capital
Improvement Fund:
Series 2000 A 132,800,000 9/1/2020 5.242% 13,245,000 19,375,000
Sexies 2000 B 145,295,000  9/1/2020 5.003% 14,770,000 21,540,000
Series 2002 A 194,590,000  9/1/2022 4.59%% 18,685,000 25,560,000
Series 2004 A " 76,725,000 9/1/2024 4.352% 40,385,000 43,390,000
Series 2005 A 169,790,000  9/1/2019 4121% 168,580,000 168,840,000
Series 2006 A 155,460,000  9/1/2024 4.421% 153,440,000 153,975,000
Institute for Advanced Study:
2001 Series A 11,000,000  7/1/2031 5.101% 2,450,000 2,735,000
2006 Series B 29,600,000 7/1/2031 3.990% 28,600,000 28,800,000
2006 Series C 20,000,000  7/1/2036 Varjable 18,800,000 19,200,000
2008 Series C 11,255,000 7/1/2021 3.619% 7,815,000 9,575,000
Institute for Defense Analyses: ‘
2000 Series D 16,695,000 10/1/2030 Variable 13,670,000 14,135,000
Kezn University:
Series 1998 B 25,995,000 77172027 4.872% 6,245,000 6,665,000
Series 2003 D 75,000,000 7/1/2033 4.811% 13,290,000 13,290,000
Sexies 2005 B 101,915,000  7/1/2037 4.681% 23,525,000 23,890,000
Series 2007 D 117,795,000  7/1/2039 4.553% 115,955,060 117,795,000
Serjes 2009 A 179,380,000 9/1/_’2036 6.404% 179,380,000 179,380,000
Library Grant Program: ‘
Series 2002 A 45,000,000 9/1/2022 4.560% 33,605,000 35,670,000
Monmouth University: .
1993 Series A. 14,365,000 7/1/2013 5.538% 3,315,000 4,295,000
1997 Series C 12,910,000  7/1/2022 5.732% 6,970,000 7,365,000
1998 Series D 2,815,000 7/1/2024 5.225% 4,088,000 4,265,000



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable (continued)

Original Final Amount Ouistanding
Tssue Maturity ~ Net Effective December 31
Issue Ajpnount Dafe Interest Rate 2010 2009
Ronds Payable (continued)
Moniclair State University: :
Series 2002 78,500,000 7/1/2032 4.489% $ 22,375,000 22,375,000
Serjes 2003 E 23,425,000 7/1/2033 4.445% 18,425,000 18,625,000
Series 2003 L 94,540,000  7/1/2034 4.541% - 27,960,000 28,110,000
Series 2006 A 98,090,000  7/1/2036 4.816% 92,505,000 94,250,000
Series 2006 B © 9,970,000 7/1/2012 4.133% 4,255,000 6,235,000
Series 2006 J 154,110,000 7/1/2034 4.300% 154,110,000 154,110,000
Series 2007 A 6,150,000 7/1/2021 4.022% 5,885,000 6,150,000
Seres 2008 T 27,545,000 7/01/2038 5.100% 217,545,000 27.545,000
New Jersey City University (formerly
Jersey City Staie College):
Series 1977C 8,570,000 7/1/2010 6.250% - 580,000
Series 1999 B 17,795,000 7/1/2025 4.807% - 12,320,000
Series 2002 A 15,115,000  7/1/2032 4.945% 1,880,000 2,215,000
Series 2003 B 2,300,000  7/1/2018 5.659% 1,800,000 2,000,000
Series 2007 F 17,910,000 7/1/2032 4.337% 17,480,000 17,725,000
Series 2008 E 68,445,000 7/1/2035 4.763% 65,650,000 67,075,000
Series 2008 F 6,175,000 7/1/2036 7.039% 6,175,000 6,175,000
Series 2010 F 24,065,000 7/1/2028 3.313% 24,065,000 -
. Series2010G 18,310,000 7/1/2040 4.062% ** 18,310,000 -
New Jersey Institute of Technology:
Series 2001 G 62,335,000 7/1/2031 4932% - 57,085,000
Series 2001 H - taxable 12,570,000, 7/1/2016 6.259% 6,425,000 7,290,000
Series 2004 B 73,530,000  7/1/2025 4.016% 66,465,000 69,590,000
Series 2010 H 50,965,000  7/1/2031 4.280% 50,965,000 -
Series 2010 T 20,450,000 7/1/2040 4.304% ** 20,450,000 -
Passaic County Comm College
Series 2010 C 13,635,000 7/1/2041 5.355% 13,635,000 -
Princefon Theological Seminary: '
2002 Series G 26,125,000 7/1/2032 4.824% 25,465,000 25,565,000
2009 Series B 14,435,000 12/1/2032 2.878% 13,505,000 14,330,000
2010 Series A 68,785,000  7/1/2030 3.745% 68,785,000 -
Princeton University:
1999 Series A 45,500,000 7/1/2029 4.798% - 3,575,000
2000 Series E 50,000,000  7/1/2010 5.355% e 2,330,000
2000 Seres H 100,000,000  7/1/2010 5.336% - 2,285,000
2003 Series D 114,495,000  7/1/2019 3.727% 81,010,000 ' 84,345,000
2003 Series E 112,510,000  7/1/2028 3.944% 57,900,000 61,085,000
2004 Series D 175,000,000  7/1/2029 4.497% 33,375,000 37,970,000
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authczity
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable (continued)

Original Final Amount Cutstanding
Issue Maturity  Net Effective December 31
Issue Amount Date Interesi Rate 2010 2009
Bonds Payable (continued)
Princeton University (continued):
2005 Series A. $ 139,590,000 7/1/2030 4.405% 133,955,000 134,570,000
2005 Series B 114,645,000  7/1/2035 4.236% 78,750,000 81,015,000
2006 Seres D 74,290,000 7/1/2031 4.391% 68,800,000 70,720,000
2006 Series E 03,285,000 7/i/2027 4.504% 92,375,000 92,500,000
2007 Series E 325,000,000  7/1/2037 4.534% 307,995,000 313,885,000
2007 Series F 67,620,000  7/1/2030 4.392% 67,585,000 67,500,000
2008 Series J 250,000,000  7/1/2038 4.381% 245,590,000 250,000,000
2008 Series K 208,805,000 7/1/2023 4.356% 186,160,000 197,535,000
2010 Series B 250,000,000 7/1/2040 4.034% 250,000,000 B
Ramapo College of New Jersey:
Series 1998 G 16,845,000  7/1/2028 4.832% 12,785,000 13,220,000
Series 1998 H 2,000,000 7/1/2013 4.309% 530,000 . 685,000
Series 2001 D 40,480,000 7/1/2031 5.105% 4,195,000 5,135,000
Series 2002 H 28,655,000  7/1/2032 4.485% 16,925,000 17,585,000
Series 2002 | 2,145,000 7/1/2032 4.485% 1,210,000 1,255,000
Series 2002 7 29,620,000  7/1/2032 4485% 17,505,000 18,185,000
Series 2003 F 1,820,000 7/1/2013 3.257% 730,000 960,000
Series 2003 G 9,300,000 7/3/2013 3.110% - 2,325,000 3,775,000
Series 2003 H 18,930,000  7/1/2029 4,346% 18,010,000 18,635,000
Series 2004 E 53,980,000 7/1/2034 4.630% 13,450,000 13,680,000
Series 2006 D 49,085,000  7/1/2036 4.521% 35,965,000 36,970,000
Series 2006 I 106,820,000  7/1/2036 4.417% 106,165,000 106,485,000
Rider University: i
2002 Series A 27,560,000 7/1/2017 4,709% 15,930,000 17,810,000
2004 Series A 14,735,000 7/1/2034 5.301% 13,375,000 13,665,000
2007 Series C 22,000,000 7/1/2037 5.172% 21,240,000 21,630,000
Rowan University (fonmerly
Glassboro State College):
Series 1983 D 3,500,000  7/1/2013 3.000% 525,000 690,000
Series 2000 B 51,620,000  7/1/2010 5.566% - 1,210,000
Series 2001 B 8,790,000  7/1/2031 5.025% 210,000 210,000
Series 2001 C 60,930,000  7/1/2031 4.943% 37,140,000 38,850,000
Series 2002 K 14,920,000 7/1/2033 4.866% 665,000 665,000
Series 2003 T 64,910,000  7/1/2030 4.714% 5,585,000 6,880,000
Series 2004 C 61,275,000 7/1/2034 4.697% 8,680,000 8,680,000
Serjes 2005 D 51,840,000 7/1/203¢ 4.532% 50,960,000 51,360,000
Series 2006 G 69,405,000 7/1/2031 4.362% 66,530,000 67,915,000
Series 2007 B 121,355,000 7/1/2034 4.266% 119,500,000 119,500,000
Series 2008 B 35,205,000  7/1/2027 4.839% 35,205,000 35,205,000
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Payable (continued)

Original Final Amount Outstanding
Issue Maturity ~ Net Effective December 31
Issue Amount Date Interest Rate 2010 2009
Bonds Payable (continued)
Saint Peter’s College:
2007 Series G 36,053,465 7/1/2027 4.217% 36,053,466 § 36,053,466
2007 Series I 3,848,462  1/1/2013 3.925% 2,758,462 3,333,462
2008 Serdes H 5,000,000 7/1/2018 3.925% 3,965,300 4,405,500
Seton Hall University: '
1999 Refunding Series 50,450,000 7/1/2018 5.122% 23,270,000 26,905,000
2001 Refunding Series A 22,840,000 7/1/2016 4314% 5,180,000 5,845,000
2001 Refunding Serics B 11,600,000  7/3/2016 4314% 5,275,000 6,090,000
2001 Series Project G 8,740,000 7/1/2026 4.598% 8,740,060 8,740,000
2008 Series 49,760,000  7/1/2037 Varjable 48,850,000 49,760,000
2008 Series E 24,340,000  7/1/2037 6.127% 24,340,000 24,340,000
2009 Series C 7,955,000  9/1/2036 6.404% 7,925,600 7,955,000
Stevens Institute of Technology:
1998 Seres I 17,000,000 7/1/2028 5.109% 5,980,000 6,285,000
2007 Series A 71,060,000 7/1/2034 4.977% 71,060,000 71,060,000
The College of Now Jersey: '
Series 2002 C 53,155,000  7/1/2019 4.480% 36,120,000 38,965,000
Series 2008 D 287,790,000 " 7/1/2035 5.086% 286,790,000 287,790,000
Series 2010 A. 3,410,000  7/1/2015 2411% 3,410,000 -
Series 2010 B 41,090,000  7/1/2040 4.748% ** 41,090,000 -
The College of Saint Elizabeth: ‘
2008 Series F 24,090,000 7/1/2036 Variable 22,990,000 23,550,000
The Richard Stockton Coilege of
New Jersey:
Series 1988 A. 3,294,000  7/1/2016 3.000% 825,000 969,000
Series 2002 B 2,340,000 7172010 3.482% o 820,000
Series 2005 F 28,180,000  7/1/2028 4.458% 23,715,000 24,595,000
Series 2006 F 50,365,000 7/1/2036 " 4.460% 49,360,000 50,365,000
Series 2007 G 40,250,000 7/1/2037 4.500% 39,115,000 35,855,000
Series 2008 A 136,910,000  7/1/2038 5.305% 136,910,000 136,910,000
University of Medicine and Dentistry
of New Jersey: .
Sexies 2009 B 258,075,000 12/1/2032 7.472% 258,075,000 258,075,000
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Notes and Leases Paﬁrable {continued)

COriginal Final : Amount Qutstanding
Issue Maturity ~ Net Effective December 31
Issue Amount Date Tnterest Rafe 2010 2009
Bonds Payable (continued)
The William Paterson University of
New Jersey:
Series 1981 B 5,000,000  7/1/2011 3.000% 270,000 520,000
Series 2000 A 26,425,000 7/1/2010 5.515% - - 570,000
Series 2002 B 42,125,000  7/1/2027 4.714% 17,610,000 19,660,000
Series 2004 A 30,035,000  7/1/2028 4.131% 23,115,000 24,320,000
Series 2005 & 42,295,000 7/1/2030 4.546% 40,420,000 41,170,000
Series 2008 C 88,670,000 7/1/2038 4.724% 85,860,000 87.320,000
Notes Payable
Princeton University: .
Various Commercial Paper 120,000,000* N/A Variable 17,110,000 12,680,000
Leases Payable
Kean University 916,666 6/1/2014 4.064% 337,791 499333
Kean University 10,000,000  7/1/2020 3.140% 9,750,000 -
Ramapo College of New Jersey 1,377,090 10/1/2010 Various 490 58,719
Seton Hall University 3,371,286 5/27/2011 3.040% 719,332 2,409,053
Thomas Edison State College 1,800,000 3/8/2012 31.647% 190,033 381,496
Thomas Edison State College 2,700,000 9/28/2022 Variable 1,538,541 1,925,694
Thomas Edison State College 700,000 9/14/2015 2.370% 666,933 -
Treasurer, State of New Jersey,

Series 1995 A 19,295,000 9/1/2014 4,705% 1,600,000 1,955,000
Essex County, Series 1999 C 4,570,000 9/1/2014 5.177% 1,540,000 1,880,000
Hudson County, Series 19991 7,750,000  9/1/2014 . 5.177% 2,610,000 3,190,000
Middlesex County, Series 1999 E 4,370,000 9/1/2014 5.053% 1,470,000 1,795,000
Passaic County, Series 1999 F 2,015,000 671/2014 5.125% 675,000 825,000
Hudson County Community College ‘

(Chapter 78), Series 1995 G 2,035,000 9/1/2014 5.177% 685,000 240,000

# Maximum authorized amount.
*+ Build America Bond

§ 5,473,025,526 § 5,184,511,177
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

6. Bonds, Nofes and Leases Payable (continued)

The minimum aggregate principal maturities for each of the following five year periods are as
follows: :

20112015 : $ 933,114,806

2016 —-2020 ' 1,183,132,399
2021 - 2025 1,166,444,274
20262030 1,042,731,716
20312035 824,026,131
2036 - Thereafter 324,476,210

$ 5,473,925,536

7. Refunded Bond Issues

When conditions have warranted, the Authority has sold various issues of bonds o provide for
the refunding of previously issued obligations. T

The proceeds received from the sales of the bond issues were used to refund currently the
outstanding bond issues or to deposit in an irrevocable escrow fund held by the Escrow Agent,
an amount which, when combined with interest eamnings thereon, 1s at least equal to the sum of
the outstanding principal amount of the bonds, the interest to accrue thereon to and including the
first optional redemption date thereof, and the premium required to redeem the bonds
outstanding on such date. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for defeased
bonds are not included in the Authority’s financial statements.

Certain transactions defeased the outstanding bond issues with a resultant reduction in annual

debt service during the term of the issues. The debt service savings, together with any accounting
gain or loss that will be deferred, accrue to the respective institutions.

31



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

7. Refunded Bond Issues (continued)

Refunded bonds outstanding at December 31, 2010 comprise the following:

Principal
Amount Refunded Issues Refunding Issues
Outstanding  Principal Debt Date Original
December Amonnt Call Sérvice of Amount
Issoe 31, 2010 Refunded Date Savings Issuance Issue of Issue
Princeton Univessity
2000 Series E T - $27,615000 /172010 5434717 10/23/2003 2003 SeriesD  § 114,495,000
2000 Series H - 26,700,000 7/172010
Higher Educational Capital
Improvement Fund
Series 2600 A - 59,405,000 9/1/2010 5,080,385 2/10/2005 Series 2005 A 169,790,000
Serjes 2000 B ~ 65675000 9/1/2010
Series 2002 A 41,850,000 41,850,000 9/1/2012
Rowan University
Series 2000 B - 45445000 7/1/2010 1,912 380 4/13/2005 Series 2005 D 51 ,240,000
Princeton University
2000 Series E - 3,035,000 7/172010 4,243,735 4/12/2005 2005 Series A 139,590,000
2000 Series H - 45,435,000 7/1/2010
2003 SeriesE 25,000,000 25,000,000 7/3/2013
2004 Series D 31,470,000 31,470,000 7/1/2014
The William Patzsson University of
New Jersey
Series 2000 4 - 22,395,000 7/1/2010 1,420,584 11/1072005 Series 2005E 42,295,000
Series 2002 E 11,305,000 11,305,060 7/1/20012
. Institute for Advanced Study
2001 Series A - 7,190;000 7/172010 2,100,572 7/19/2006 2006 Series B 11,000,000
Princeton University
2600 Series H w T ID6I5000 /L2610 2,755,549 8/10/2006 2006 Series E 45,500,000
2005 Series E 5950,000 5950000 7/1/2013 160,000,000
2004 Series D 49,045,000 49,045,000  7/1/2614 112,510,000
2005 Series B 7820000 7,820,000 7/1/20i5 175,000,000
114,645,000
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

7. Refunded Bond Issues (continued)

Principal
Amount Refunded Issues Refunding Issues
Outstanding  Principal Debt Date Original
December Amount Call Service of Amount
Tssue 31,2010 . Refunded Date Savings Issuance Issoe " of Issue
Rowan University
Series 2002 K £ 4,805,000 $ 4,805,000 7172012 $ 738003 11/16/2006  Senes 2006 G § 14,920,600
Series 20037 1 7,i25,000 17,385,000 7/172013 64,510,000
Higher Education Capitzl
Improvement Fund
Series 2000 A —~ . 10,545,000 G/1/2010 4,438,363 10262006 Series 2006 A 132,800,000
Series 2000 B C - 11,405,000 S/1/2010 145,295,000
Series 2002 A 102,810,000 102,810,000 /372012 194,590,000
Series 2004 A 22,760,000 22,760,000 912014 76,725,000
Ramapo College of New Jersey
Series 2001 D 30,435,000 32,130,000 7/1/2011 3,510,943 11/28/2006 Seres 20061 40,480,000
Series 2002 H 7,930,000 8,795,000 7/1/20i2 28,655,000
Series 20021 ‘ 570,000 615,000 7/1/2032 2,145,000
Series 2002 F 8,205,000 8,835,600 7/1/2012 26,620,000
Series 2004 B 40,300,000 40,300,000 7/1/2014 53,980,000
Series 2006 D 11,145,000 11,145,000 7172016 49,085,000
Montclair State University .
Series 2001 F 18,695,600 18,695,000 7/1/2011 6,194,157 12/1472006 Series 2006 1 18,695,000
Serjes 2002 F 43,775,000 56,125,000 7/12010 78,500,000
Series 2003 E - 4,600,000 7/1/2010 23,425,000
Series 2003 L 57425000 64200000 7/1/2014 94,540,000
New Jersey City University
Series 2002 A, 10,855,000 11,785,000  7/4/2012 696,503 4/42007  Series 2007 F 15,115,000
Kean University
Series 2001 A 3,120,000 4,750,000 7172011 14,985 307 4/132007 Series 207 E 156,240,000
Series 2003 D 54420000 60395000 7/1/2013 '
Series 2005 B 72755000 77,530,000 717206
Stevens Institute of Technology
1998 Series 5,130,000 6,050,000 NoCall NiaF 8272007 2007 Series A 71,060,600
2002 Series C 46,150,000 49355000 7/1/2013
2004 Series B 12,085,000 12,825,000 7/1/2014
Princeton University ‘
2003 Series B 4,270,000 4270000 /12013 2361004 GA19/2007 2007 Series F 67,620,000
2004 Series 6,905.000 36205000 /12014
2005 Senies A 2,095,000 2,095,000 /172015

2005 Series B ' 17,625,000 17,625000 7/1/2015



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements (continued)

7. Refunded Bond Issues (continued)

Principal

Amount Refunded Issues Refonding Issues
_Oufsianding  Principal Debsi Date : Original
December Amount Call Service of Amount
lssue 31,2010 Refunded Date Savings Issuance Issue of Issue
Rowan University
Series 2001 B § 7,035000 § 7,610000 7772011 $ 4465765 4/572007 Series2007B  § 121,355,000
Series 2001 C ' . 7,055,000 7,850,000 7/1/2011
Series 2002 K 7,435,000 §,340,000 7/1/2012
Serjes 2003 § 32,530,000 35,615,000 7/172013
Serjes 2004 C 47,905,000 51,595,000 7/172014
Georgian Court University .
2003 Series, Project C 12,790,000 13,585,000 7/1/2013 1,034,788 7/19/2007 2007 Series D 26,980,000
Beth Medrash Govoha
2000 Series G - 7,450,606 7/1/2010 N/A* NiA NA N/A
Drew University
2003 Series C 2,390,000 2,390,000 7/1/2013 W/A* 11/152010 2010 Series C 15,580,000
2007 Series I 1,255,000 1,255,000 7/1/2013
New Jersey City University ‘
Series 1999 B S 11,615,000 10/472010 1,175021 9272010  Series 2010 F 24,065,000
New Jersey Institute of Technology
‘Series 2001 G 56,305,000 56,305,000 7/122011 3,683,210 11/12/2010 Series 2010H 50,965,000

* Debt restructuring
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Members of the
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited the financial statements of the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 10, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comnptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our anditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
‘effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration. of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to
" be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matteﬁ

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Members of the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority, and others within the entity and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

&

March 10, 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Bond Resolution Compliance

To the Members of the
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States,
the balance sheet of the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority as of December 31, 2010,
and the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated March 10, 2011.

Pursuant to the General Revenue Bond Resolution adopted October 10, 1968 and amended
January 12, 1971, the General Higher Educational Facilities Revenue Bond Resolution adopted
October 10, 1968 and amended April 13, 1971, applicable Series Resolutions and applicable
Trust Indentures during the period under audit, the Authority had outstanding the authorized
bonds and obligations listed in Exhibit A of this report as of December 31, 2010.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or
conditions of the Resolutions and.Indentures referred to above, imnsofar as they relate to
accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge
of such noncompliance. In addition, in our opinion, on December 31, 2010, the balance in the
Debt Service Reserve Funds and the Renewal and Replacement Accounts for each outstanding
bond issue where applicable and the insurance coverage maintained meet the requirements of the
aforementioned General Resolutions, applicable Series Resolutions and applicable Trust
Indentures.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Members and management of the
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority and the Trustees -under the Resolutions and
Indentures and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. '

March 10, 2011
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New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations

December 31, 2010
Institution Issue
Caldwell College 2006 Series F
Centenary College 2003 Series A
2006 Series J
2007 Series B
2010 Series D
Drew University 2003 Series C
2007 Series D
2008 Series B
2008 Series [
2010 Series C
Essex County Series 1999 C

Fairleigh Dickinson University

Felician College

Georgian Court University

Hudson County

Hudson County Community College

1003-1137374

2002 Series D
2004 Series C
2006 Series G
2006 Series H

2006 Series I

1998 Series, Project B
2003 Series, Project C

2007 Series D
2007 Series H

Series 1999 D

Series 1999 G

Exhibit A



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2010

Institution . :
Institute for Advanced Study

Institute for Defense Analyses

Kean University

Middlesex County

Monmouth University

Montclair State University

New Jersey City University
(formerly Jersey City State College)
*Jersey City State College issue

1003-1137374

Tssue

2001 Series A
2006 Series B
2006 Series C
2008 Series C

2000 Series D

Series 1998 B
Series 2003 D
Series 2005 B
Series 2007 D

2007 Tax Exempt Lease

Series 2009 A

2010 Tax Exempt Lease

Series 1999 E

1993 Series A
1997 Series C
1998 Series D

Series 2002 F
Series 2003 E
Series 2003 L
Series 2006 A

Series 2006 B

Series 2006 J
Series 2007 A
Series 2008 J

Series 1977 C*
Series 1999 B
Series 2002 A
Series 2003 B
Series 2007 F
Series 2008 E

 Series 2008 F

Series 2010 F
Series 2010 G

Exhibit A



Exhibit A

New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Qutstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2010

Institution

New Jersey Institute of Technology

Passaic County
Passaic County Community College

Princeton Theological Seminary

Princeton University

. Ramapo College of New Jersey

1003-1137374 .

Issue

Series 2001 G

Series 2001 H-Taxable
Series 2004 B

Series 2010 H

Series 2010 I

Series 1999 F
Series 2010 C

_ 2002 Series G
2009 Series B
2010 Series A

Various - Commercial paper
1999 Series A
2000 Series E
2000 Series H
2003 Series D
2003 Series E
2004 Series D
2005 Series A
2005 Series B
2006 Series D
2006 Series E
2007 Series E
2007 Series F
2008 Series J
2008 Series K
2010 Series B

Series 1998 G
Series 1998 H
2000 Lease Purchase



Exhibit A
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2010

Institation : © Issue

Ramapo College of New Jersey

(continued) - Series 2001 D
- Series 2002 H
- Series 20021 -
- Series 2002 J
- Series 2003 F
- Series 2003 G
- Series 2003 H

- Series 2004 E
- Series 2006 D
- Series 20061
Rider University - 2002 Series A
- 2004 Serjes A
- 2007 Series C
Rowan University
(Formerly Glassboro State College) - Series 1983 D*
* Glassboro State College issue - Series 2000 B

- Series 2001 B

- Series 2001 C

- Series 2002 K
- Series 2003 [

- Series 2004 C

- Series 2005 D

- Series 2006 G

- Series 2007 B

- Series 2008 B

1003-1137374 5



New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2010
Institution Issue
Saint Peter’s College * 2007 Series G

Seton Hall University

Stevens Institute of Technology

The College of New J ersey

The College of Saint Elizabeth

The Richard Stockton
College of New Jersey

Thomas Edison State College

1003-1137374

2007 Series |
2008 Series H

1999 Refunding Series
2001 Refunding Series A
2001 Refunding Series B
2001 Series Project G
2008 Series D

2008 Series E

2009 Series C

2009 Tax Exempt Lease

1998 Series 1
2007 Series A

Series 2002 C
Series 2008 D
Series 2010 A
Series 2010 B

2008 Series F

Series 1988 A
Series 2002 B
Series 2005 F
Series 2006 F
Series 2007 G
Series 2008 A

2005 Lease Purchase
2007 Tax Exempt Lease
2010 Tax Exempt Lease

Exhibit A



Exhibit A
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority '

Outstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2010

Institution ' Issue
University of Medicine and Dentistry
of New Jersey - Series 2009 B
William Paterson University of
New Jersey - Series 1981 B
- Series 2000 A
~ Series 2002 E
- Series 2004 A
- Series 2005 E

- Series 2008 C

Treasurer, State of New Jersey - Series 2005 A, Higher Education
' : Facilities Trust Fund

- Series 1999 A, County College
Capital Project Fund

- Series 2000 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

" - Series 2000 B, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

- Series 2002 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

1003-1137374 7



Exhibit A
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

QOutstanding Bonds and Obligations (continued)

December 31, 2010

Institution Issue

Treasurer, State of New Jersey Series 2004 A, Higher Education
(continued) ' . Capital Improvement Fund

- Series 2005 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

- Series 2006 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

.~ Series 2001 A, Dormitory Safety
+ Trust Fund

- Series 2001 B, Taxable, Dormitory
Safety Trust Fund '

- Series 2003 A, Dormitory Safety
Trust Fund

- Series 2003 A, Equipment Leasing
Fund

- Series 2002 A, Library Grant
Program

1003-1137374 8
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CHAPTER 107

AN ACT requiring State entities to examine the opportunity of minority and women-owned
financial institutions to serve as senior managing underwriters for State debt transactions,
imposing reporting requirements, and enabling the establishment of aspirational levels of
utilization and relative compensation, supplementing chapter 32 of Title 52 of the Revised
Statutes.

BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the State of New Jersey:

C.52:32-48 Qualified minority, women-owned financial institutions, service as senior
managing underwriters, certain transactions; report; definitions.

1. a For each State fiscal year commencing after the effective date of P.L.2010, c.107, a
State entity which engages in debt transactions shail examine the opportunity of qualified
minor‘iay and women-owned financial institutions to serve as senjor managing underwriters
for such transactions. The State entity shall report the findings of the examination to the
State Treasurer, and to the Legislature upon the explicil request thereof.

b. The report required by subsection a. of this section shall include:

(1) the total number of the State entity’s debt transactions in which qualified minerity and
women-owned financial institusions served as senior managing underwriters;

(2) the total number of qualified minority and women-owned financial instifutions which
sought unsuccessfully to serve as senior managing underwriters for the State entity’s debt
transactions; )

(3) the total number of qualified minority and women-owned financial institutions
available to serve as senior managing underwriters for the State entity’s debt transactions;

(4} the total number of qualified minority and women-owned financial institutions
available to serve. as senior managing underwriters for the State entity’s debt transactions
whose primary trading, underwriting or investment banking activities were located within the
State;

(5) the total number of State entity debt transactions in which a qualified minority and
women-owned financial institution served as senior managing underwriters, relative to the
tatal number of debt transactions undertaken by the State entity;

(63 the total value of the State entity’s debt transactions in which a qualified minority and
women-owned financial institution served as senior managing underwriters, relative to the
total value of debt transactions undertaken by the State entity; and

(7) the total and per transaction value of the compensation provided to qualified minority
and.women-owned financial institutions who serve as senior managing underwriters for the
State entity’s debt transactions relative to the total and per transaction value of compensation
provided to financial institutions, other than qualified minority and women-owned financiai
institutions, who serve as senior imanaging underwriters for the State entity’s debt
transactions.

c. A report owed pursuant to this section shall be due on the first business day after the
January i immediately following the end of the State fiscal year for which the report is due.
The State Treasurer shail determine uniform methods of data collection and reporting to
effectuate this section. The State Treasurer may provide for a reporting method in which the
requirements of subsection b. of this section are reported within categories defined by
intervals of debt transaction valuations.

d. The State Treasurer may establish an aspirational level of utilization and relative
compensation of qualified minority and women-owned financial institutions serving as senior
managing underwriters in the State entity’s debt transactions if such an aspirational level of



P.L.2010, CHAPTER 107
2

utilization and relative compensation can be established in a manuer consistent with the
responsibility to seek out the most economically optimal arrangements available for debt
transactions, in accordance with the requirement that ail persons shall have the full and equal
benefit of ali laws, and in the presence of a gross statistical disparity in the utilization and
relative compensation of qualified minority and women-owned financial institutions serving
as senior managing underwriters for a State eatity’s debt transactions as evidenced in a report
due under subsection a. of this- section. An aspirational level of utilization and relative
compensation shall not be construed as a mandated quota and shall not be enforceable, but
shall be considered as a goal that the State entity is encouraged to achieve. The State
Treasurer shall suspend an aspirational level of utilization and relative compensation upon
finding the conditions which lead to its establishment are no longer present,

e. A State entity, having been assigned an aspirational level of utilization and relative
compensation of minority and women-owned financial institutions serving as senior
managing underwriters in the State entity’s debt transactions, shall include in its report due
under subsection a. of this section a lsting of impediments to the utilization and comparable
compensation of minority and women-owned financial institutions serving as senior
managing underwriters for the State entity’s debt transactions and proposals to enhance the
utilization and compensation of qualified minority and women-owned financial institutions
serving as senior managing underwriters for the State entity’s debt transactions.

f  In the event the State Treasurer finds and certifies that impediments to the utilization
and comparable compensation of minority and women-owned financial institutions continue
to exist six months before the initial expiration date of P.L.2010, c.107, the State Treasurer
shall report such findings to the Legislature in accordance with section 2 of P.L.1991, c.164
(C.52:14-19.1) within 60 days thereof and P.L.2010, ¢.107 shall not expire but shall remain
in effect for another five years, or until the State Treasurer finds and certifies that the
impediments to the utilization and comparable compensation of minority and women-owned
financial institutions cease to exist, whichever oceurs first. P.L.2010, ¢.107 shall expire
upon the State Treasurer notifying the Legislature that the impediments cease to exist or that
the five-year period has ended, whichever occurs first.

g, Asused in this sectiom

“Tyebt tramsaction” means the creation or refinancing of a bend, note ar other financial
instrument for which repayment is due.

“Qualified minority and women-owned financial institution” means a financial institution
qualified to engage in State entity debt transaciions that has a valid certification as a
“minority business” or a “women’s business” pursuant to P.L.1986, c.195 {(C.52:27H-21.17
et seq.).

“Senjor managing underwriter” means the lead and book running manager of the
syndicate of underwriters of the State’s or State entity’s debt transactions.

“State entity” means a State department or agency, board, commission, corporation or
authority.

h. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence or other part of this act is adjudged
unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder
of this act, but shall be confined in its effect to the section, subsection, paragraph, sentence
or other part of this act directly involved in the controversy in which said judgment shali

have been rendered.

5 This act shall take effect immediately and shali expire on the fifth anniversary of the
effective date, except as provided for by subsection f. of section 1.
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Approved January 4, 2011,



RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY DECLARING ITS OFFICIAL INTENT
WITH RESPECT TO THE REIMBURSEMENT = OF
EXPENDITURES FOR PROJECT COSTS FROM PROCEEDS OF
TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

Adopted: April 26, 2011

WHEREAS, Thomas Edison State College (the “College”) has advised the New Jersey
Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority") that the College intends to implement a project
(the “Project”) consisting of renovating Kuser Mansion Jocated at 315 West Stafe Street; and

WHEREAS, the College has advised that it intends to finance the Project through the
issuance by the Authority of tax-exempt obligations (the “Tax-exempt Obligations™) issued by the
Authority and secured as to repayment by a Lease and Agreement between the Authority and the
College (the “Agreement”) in one or more series and in one or more fransactions over the next three
years, the proceeds of which will be loaned to the College;

WHEREAS, the College has advised that it may pay for certain costs of the Project (“Project
Costs™) prior to the issuance of the Tax-exempt Obligations with funds of the College which are not
proceeds of the Tax-exempt Obligations; and

WHEREAS, the College desires to preserve its right to treat an allocation of proceeds of the
Tax-exempt Obligations to the reimbursement of Project Costs paid prior to the issuance of the Tax-
exempt Obligations as an expenditure for such Project Costs to be reimbursed for purposes of
Sections 103 and 141-150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code").

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Authority as follows:

Section 1. The Authority reasonably expects the College to reimburse its expenditure of
Project Costs paid prior to the issuance of the Tax-exempt Obligations with proceeds of the Tax-
exempt Obligations.

Section 2. This resolution is intended to be and hereby is a declaration of official intent to
reimburse the expenditures for Project Costs paid prior to the issuance of the Tax-exempt
Obligations with the proceeds of the Tax-exempt Obligations in accordance with Treasury
Regulations Section 1.150-2. '

Section 3. The maximum principal amount of Tax-exempt Obligations expected to be issued
to finance the Projects is $4,000,000, which Tax-exempt Obligations may be issued in one or more
series and in one or more transactions over the next three years.

Section 4. The Project Costs to be reimbursed with the proceeds of the Tax-exempt
Obligations will be costs which satisfy the requirements of Section 150 of the Code for
reimbursement.



Section 5. No reimbursement allocation will employ an “abusive arbitrage device” under
Treasury Regulations Section 1.148-10 to avoid the arbitrage restrictions or to avoid the restrictions
under Sections 142 through 147 of the Code. The proceeds of the Tax-exempt Obligations used to
reimburse for Project Costs, or funds corresponding to such amounts, will not be used in a manner
that results in the creation of “replacement proceeds,” including “sinking funds,” “pledged funds,” or
funds subject to a “negative pledge” (as such terms are defined in Treasury Regulations Section
1.148-1) of the Tax-exempt Obligations or another issue of debt obligations of the Authority, other
than amounts deposited into a “bona fide debt service fund” (as defined in Treasury Regulations
Section 1.148-1).

Section 6. All reimbursement allocations will occur not later than 18 months after the later of
(i) the date the expenditure from a source other than the Tax-exempt Obligations is paid; or (ii) the
date the Project is “placed in service” (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2)
or abandoned, but in no event more than 3 years after the expenditure is paid.

Section 7. This resolution will take effect immediately.



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FINANCING OF THE
PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT FOR
THOMAS EDISON STATE COLLEGE

Adopted: April 26, 2011

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) was created as a
public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey (the “State™) pursuant to the New Jersey
Educational: Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey Statutes, as
amended and supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq. (the “Act™); and

- WHEREAS, the Authority has established a Lease Financing Program (the “Program™) in order
to finance the acquisition and/or installation of equipment for educational facilities; and

WHEREAS, by Resolution adopted on March 4, 2011, the Board of Trustees of Thomas Edison
State College (the “College”) has determined that it is necessary and advisable to undertake a project
consisting of the replacement of the current shelving system on Level 1 of the State Library and the
acquisition and installation of equipment, including certain technology hardware (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the College has requested the Authority to finance the Project and related financing
costs through the Program; and -

WHEREAS, in order to finance the Project and related financing costs through the Program it is
necessary to distribute a Request for Proposals ( the “RFP”) to financial institutions to provide financing
pursuant to the Program and to enter into a Master Equipment Lease and Sublease Agreement (the
“Master Lease Agreement”) by and among a lessor selected from among the firms which respond to the
RFP (the “Lessor”), the Authority, as lessee (the “Lessee”) and the College, as sublessee (the “Sub-
Lessee™) ; and

WHEREAS, it will also be necessary to enter into an Acquisition Fund and Account Control
Agreement (the “Acquisition Fund Agreement”) by and among the Lessor, the Lessee, the Sub-Lessee
and a custodian to be provided by the Lessor (the “Custodian”); and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General distributed Requests for Proposal for Special Counsel services
1o the Authority’s Bond Counsel Pool and received the following fee proposals:

Fim Fee Proposal
DeCotiis, FitzPatrick & Cole, LLP $16,500
Gibbons, PC $10,000
Gluck Walrath, LLP $12,500
Hawkins Delafield & Woods L.L.P. $19,000
McCarter & English, LLP § 9,000
McManimon & Scotland, LLC $25,000

Obermayer Rebmann Maxwell & Hippel LLF $42,000

Windels Marx Lane & Mittendorff, LLP $15,000



WHEREAS, on the basis of the foregoing fee proposals, the Attorney General has, in consultation
with the Authority, designated the firm of McCarter & English, LLP to act as Special Counsel to the
Authority in connection with the lease financing; and

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary and in keeping with its purposes to authorize entry
into the Master Lease Agreement and the Acquisition Fund Agreement and to authorize the issuance of
the Authority’s lease payment obligations pursuant to the Master Lease Agreement for the purpose of
financing the Project and related costs of financing as tax-exempt obligations and to authorize certain
actions and the execution and delivery of certain documents in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, the College has advised that it may pay for certain costs of the Project (the “Project
Costs™) prior to the issuance of the Authority’s obligations pursuant to the Master Lease Agreement with
funds of the College which are not proceeds of tax-exempt lease obligations; :

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:



ARTICLE 1

AUTHORIZATION OF LEASE FINANCING; APPROVAL OF DOCUMENTS
1.1 Purpese of Lease Financing.

The Authority hereby declares the Project to be an authorized undertaking of the Authority and
authorizes and directs the Chair, Vice-Chair, Executive Director, Deputy Executive Director, Treasurer,
Director of Project Management, Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, and/or any other
person authorized by resolution of the Authority, and any of such officers designated as “acting” or
“interim” (each an “Authorized Officer”), to execute and deliver all documents necessary to enable the
Authority, as permitted by the Act, to finance, on behalf of the College, all or part of the costs of the
Project and related financing costs.

1.2 Authorization of the Authority Obligations.

(a) The Authority hereby authorizes the issuance of the Authority’s lease payment
obligations (the “Authority’s Obligations™) pursuant to the Master Lease Agreement in the aggrepate
principal amount of not to exceed $948,000, in order to finance, on behalf of the College, all or part of the
costs of the Project and related financing costs. The Authority’s Obligations shall be designated as “New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Lease Obligations, Thomas Edison State College Project, Series
2011 (Tax-Exempt) or such other alternative or additional designation as may be determined by an
Authorized Officer of the Authority.

(b)  The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed to distribute and
advertise the RFP in such form as an Authorized Officer; with the consent of the College, determines to
be appropriate and advisable, distribution of the RFP to be conclusive evidence of the approval of the
Authorized Officer distributing the same. The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed to
accept, with the agreement of the College, the proposal offering the lowest responsive cost Any
Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the Authority the Master
Lease Agreement and the Acquisition Fund Agreement in such form as shall be approved by any
Authorized Officer, with the advice of Special Counsel and the Attorney General of the State- (such
approval to be evidenced conclusively by such Authorized Officer’s execution thereof), for the issuance
of the Authority Obligations pursuant to the Master Lease Agreement at the price or prices, payment
terms, maturity and redemption provisions agreed upon; provided, however, that the interest rate on the
Authority Obligations which are tax-exempt shall not exceed 7.00%, the term shall not exceed 15 years
and no redemption premium shall exceed 5%. A copy of the Master Lease Agreement and the
Acquisition Fund Agreement as executed shall be filed with the records of the Authority.



ARTICLE 2

. MISCELLANEOUS
2.1 Acceptance of the Designation of Special Counsel by the Attorney General.

The Authority hereby acknowledges the designation by the Attorney General, in consultation with
the Authority, of McCarter & English, LLP to act as Special Counsel to the Authority in connection with
the lease financing.

2.2 Reimbursement.

(a) The Authority reasonably expects the College to reimburse its expenditure of
Project Costs paid prior to the issuance of the Authority Obligations with proceeds of the Authority
Obligations.

(b) This Resolution is intended to be and hereby is a declaration of official intent to
reimburse the expenditures for Project Costs paid prior to the issuance of the Authority’s Obligations with
the proceeds of the Authority Obligations in accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2.

(c) The maximum principal amount of Authority Obligations expected to be issued to
finance the Project is $948,000 (including financing costs),

(d) The Project Costs to be reimbursed with the proceeds of the Authority Obligations
will be “capital expenditures” in accordance with the meaning of Section 150 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).

(e) No reimbursement allocation will employ an “abusive arbitrage device” under
Treasury Regulations Section 1.148-10 to avoid the arbitrage restrictions or to avoid the restrictions under
Sections 142 through 147 of the Code. The proceeds of the Authority Obligations used to reimburse
Project Costs, or funds corresponding to such amounts, will not be used in a manner that results in the
creation of “replacement proceeds”, including “sinking funds”, “pledged funds™ or funds subject to a
“negative pledge” (as such terms are defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.148-1) of the Authority
Obligations or another issue of debt obligations of the Authority, other than amounts deposited into a

“bona fide debt service fund” (as defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.148-1).

(f) All reimbursement allocations. will occur not later than 18 months after the later of
(i) the date of expenditure from a source other than the Authority Obligations is paid or (ii) the date the
Project is “placed in service” (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2) or
abandoned, but in no event more than 3 years after the expenditure is paid.

2.3 Incidental Action.

The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver such other
documents, certificates, agreements, directions and notices, and to take such other action as may be
necessary or appropriate in order to: (i) effectuate the execution and delivery of the Master Lease
Agreement, the Acquisition Fund Agreement and the issuance of the Authority Obligations; and (i1)
maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Authority Obligations, (including the preparation and
filing of any information reports or other documents with respect to such lease obligations as may at any
time be required under Section 149 of the Code, and any regulations thereunder).



2.4 Prier Actions Ratified.

AlFactions previously undertaken by the Authorized Officers in implementing the financing of the
Project authorized by this Resolution are hereby ratified and confirmed.

2.5  Resolutions.
All prior resolutions of the Authority or portions thereof inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.
2.6 = Effective Date.

This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY

buwitding fnrures

Date: April 26, 2011

To: Members of the Authority

Issue: Seton Hall Uni\.rersity, 2011 Series A

Amoungé: Not to Exceed $45,000,000

Purpose: To provide funds to ﬂnanée: (1) the cﬁrrent refunding of all or a portion of the
Authority’s outstanding 1999 Refunding Series and 2001 Series, Project G bonds issued
on behalf of the University; and (ii) the payment of certain costs of issuance.

Security: General Obligation of the University

Structure: Fixed Rate, Negotiated Sale

Below please find the procurement procedures that were undertaken with respect to the

various professional appointments in connection with the Seton Hall University
transaction.

Bond Counsel

On March 11, 2011 the Attorney General’s office circulated an RFP to 11 firms to
provide bond counsel services. On March 16, 2011, 6 responses were received. The
responsive firms and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm Fees

Gluck Walrath LLP ‘ $30,000
McManimon & Scotland, LLC $34,000
Windels Marx Lane & Mittendorf, LLLP $40,000
Obermayer Rebmann Maxwell & Hippel LLP $45,000
Carella, Byrne, Cecchi, Olstein, Brody & Agnello, P.C. $67,500
McCarter & English, LLP $70,000

% A resolution accepting the designation of Gluck Walrath LLP as bond counsel was approved at the March 22, 2011
board meeting.



Senior Managing Underwriter

On March 9, 2011, the Authority circulated an RFP to the 14 firms that are members of
the Authority’s pool of senior managing underwriters. On March 16, 2011, 11 responses
werereceived. The responsive firms and their respective scores are as follows:

Firm Evaluator #1 ~  Evaluator #2 Evaluator #3 Total
JP Morgan : 93.5 92 94.5 280
Wells Fargo 97.5 88.5 93.5 279.5
Bank of America Merrili Lynch 62 88 93 273
Citigroup 85.5 38 88 - 2615
Ramirez 84.5 83.5 87 255
Morgan Stanley 81.5 80 85.5 247
Goldman Sachs 76 74 86.5 236.5
PNC 76 66.5 .79 221.5
Barclays 73 73 73.5 219.5
RBC ' 68 70.5 72 210.5
Jefferies 535 46.5 60.5 160.5

Co-Senior Manager

In an effort to increase distribution of the bonds and pursuant to Section 5(h) of the
attached resolution, the Executive Director hereby recommends the appointment of
Ramirez & Co., Inc. as co-senior manager for this transaction.

Co-Managing Underwriter

On March 25, 2011, the Authority circulated an RFP to the 14 firms that are members of

the Authority’s pool of co-managing underwriters. On April 1, 2011, 7 responses were

received. The responsive firms and their respective scores are as follows:

Firm Score
Roosevelt & Cross $70,272,055
Raymond James : $23,310,000
NW Capital $20,471,435
Jackson Securities $2,211,000
Rice Financial $0
Lebenthal ' Non-Responsive
Piper Jaffray Non-Responsive

3.94
3.97
4.01
4.04
4.55
4.65
4.86
5.20
522
5.24
6.51



Financial Advisor

On March 21, 2011, the Authority circulated an RFP to 59 financial advisory firms and
posted the RFP en the Authority’s and the State of New Jersey’s websites. On March 28,
2011, 7 responses were received. The responsive firms and their respective scores are as

follows:

Firm Evaluator #1
Acacia 83
Prager Sealy 73.5
Phoenix 75.5
PTM 76.5
NW Financial 69
Scoit Balice 54

First Southwest 50

Verification Agent

On March 25, 2011, the Authority circulated an RFP to 4 firms that regularly perform
verification agent services and posted the RFP on the Authority’s and the State of New
Jersey’s websites. On April 1, 2011, 3 responses were received. The responsive firms

and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm
Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc.

BondResource Partners, LP
Mercadien, P.C.

Trustee

On March 16, 2011, the Authority circulated an RFP to the 3 firms that are members of
the Authority’s pool of trustees. Cn Mazch 21, 2011, 3 responses were received. The
responsive firms and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm

U.S. Bank, National Associatien
The Bank of New York Mellon
TD Bank, National Association

Evaluator #2  Evaluator #3

80.5
82.5
73
66
66
39.5
48

Total
80.5 244
84.5 240.5
70 218.5
68 210.5
66.5 201.5
59,5 153
52 150

Fees

$2,090
$2,300
$3,000

Fees

$350
$500
$6,000

Fee

$17,300
$16,000
$18,500
$21,000
$10,000
$20,833
$22,600



Escrow Agent

The escrow agent for this transaction is The Bank of New York Melion. The escrow
agent is the original trustee on the bonds being refunded and is not subject to an RFP
process. '



BOND RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETON HALL
UNIVERSITY BONDS

Adopted: April 26, 2011

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority””) was created as a
public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey (the “State”) pursuant to the New Jersey
Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey Statutes, as
amended and supplemented), NJ.S.4. 184:724-1 et seq. (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, Seton Hall University (“Seton Hali”) has determined to undertake a project (the
“Refimding Project”) consisting of: (i) the current refunding of bonds issued by the Authority, including,
but not limited to, all or a portion of the Authority's outstanding $23,270,000 Seton Hall University
Project Revenue Refunding Bonds, 1999 Series, $5,180,000 Seton Hall University Project Revenue
Bonds, 2001 Refunding Series A, $5,275,000 Seton Hall University Project Revenue Bonds, 2001
Refunding Series B, and $8,740,000 Seton Hall University Project Revenue Bonds, 2001 Series,
Project G (collectively, the “Bonds to be Refunded”) and (ii) the payment of costs of issuance of the Bonds
(as hereinafter defined) as presented, submitted and approved by Seton Hall's Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, has determined that it is necessary and in keeping with its
authorized purposes to issue a series of bonds to be designated “New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority Revenve Refunding Bonds, Seton Hall University Issue, 2011 Series A” or such other
designation as may be determined by the Authority (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of providing funds to
finance the Refunding Project; and

WHEREAS, the repayment of the Bonds will be secured by a Loan Agreement between the
Authority and Seton Hall (the “Agreement”) and a Mortgage and Security Agreement between Seton Hall
and the Authority (the “Mortgage™); and

WHEREAS, the Bonds are payable solely from Revenues (as defined in the Trust Indenture by
and between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association as trustee (the “Indenture™)) other than
Additional Loan Payments (as defined in the Agreement), and from amounts on deposit in certain funds
under the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the obligation of Seton Hall to make the payments required under the Agreement
for the payment of debt service on the Bonds constitutes a general obligation of Seton Hall; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8(c) of the Act, the bonds of the Authority shall be
authorized by resolution of the members of the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS, AS FOLLOWS:
1. Purpose of Issuance of the Bonds.

The Authority hereby declares the Refunding Project to be an authorized undertaking of the
Authority.



2. Authorization of Bonds.

(2) The Authority hereby authorizes the issuance of the Bonds in an aggregate principal
amount not to exceed of $45,000,000 in order to finance, on behalf of Seton Hall, the costs of the
Refunding Project, in whole or in part.

(b) The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form, shall be in the denomtnations,
and shal] be numbered as shall be provided in the Indenture, The Bonds shell be dated, bear interest,
mature and be executed and authenticated as shall be set forth in the Indenture; provided, however, that
the final maturity date of the Bonds will be no Jater than July 1, 2041, The Bonds shall bear interest at a fixed
rate or rates as described in the Indenture, with a true interest cost not to exceed 7.00% per annum. The
Bonds shall be subject to redemption as provided in the Indenture; provided, however, that the
redemption premium on the Bonds, if any, shall not exceed 5.0%.

(©) The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth in the Indenture, with such
insertions, omissions or variations as may be necessary or appropriate.

(d) The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the Authority by the manual or facsimile
signature of its Chair, Vice Chair, Executive Director or Deputy Executive Director and its official common
seal (or a facsimile thereof) shall be thereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise reproduced
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Execufive
Director or Deputy Executive Director (provided the same has not executed such Bond).

() Following the execution of the Bonds, any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to
deliver the Bonds to the Trustee for authentication and, after authentication, to deliver the Bonds to the
Underwriter (as hereinafter defined) or its agent against receipt of the purchase price or unpaid balance
thereof.

® The Authority hereby finds and determines that the issuance of the Bonds
involves certain circumstances under which a negotiated bond sale is permissible as outlined in
Executive Order No. 26 (Whitman 1994), namely, volatile market conditions and a complex
credit, and a competitive sale of the Bonds is not in the best interest of the Authority and Seton
Hall.

3. Approval of Documents.

The forms of the foliowing documents presented to the meeting at which this Resolution is
adopted, with such changes advised by GluckWalrath LLP, as kond counsel or the Attomey
General of the Staté, are hereby approved. The Authority hereby authorizes and directs the Chair,
Vice-Chair, Treasurer, Executive Director, Deputy Executive Director, Project Manager, Secretary, any
Assistant Secretary and any other person authorized by resolution of the Authority, and any of such
officers desighated as “acting” or “interim” (each an “Authorized Officer”) to execute, acknowledge
and deliver and any other Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to affix and attest
the official common seal of the Authority, if applicable, to any of the following documents:

(a) Indenture;

(b) Agreement;



(c) Mortgage;

(d) Letter of Instructions (the “Letter of Imstructions™ to, or Escrow Deposit
Agreement (the “Escrow Deposit Agreement”) by and between the Authority and,
The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee for the Bonds to be Refunded; and

(e Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) by and between the
Authority and senior managing underwriter, on bebalf of itself and the other
underwriter(s) (collectively, the “Underwriter”).

4. Approval of Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.

The preparation publication and distribution by the Underwriter of a Preliminary Official
Statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) relating to the Bonds (in substantially the form presented
to the Authority at the time of adoption hereof, with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions
as any Authorized Officer shall deem necessary or advisable, with the advice of Bond Counsel and the
Attomey General of the State) are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. The preparation and
distribution by the Underwriter of a final Official Statement (the “Official Statement™) for the Bonds
(in. substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes, omissions, insertions
and revisions as any Authorized Officer shall deem necessary or advisable, with the advice of Bond Counsel
and the Attorney General of the State) are hereby approved, and any Authorized Officer is hereby
authorized to sign and deliver to the Underwriter the Official Statement in final form acceptable to
such Authorized Officer, Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized, with the advice of Bond Counsel
and the Attorney General of the State, to deem the Preliminary Official Statement final within the
meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and to
provide written evidence relating thereto in form acceptable to Bond Counsel.

5. Appointments.

(a) J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, is hereby appointed as the book running senior managing
underwriter in connection with the refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds to be Refunded
pursuant to the terms of the Contract of Purchase.

(b) Ramirez & Co., Inc. is hereby appointed as the co-senior managing underwriter in
connection with the refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds to be Refunded pursuant to the terms-
of the Contract of Purchase

() Roosevelt & Cross, Inc. is hereby appointed as the co-manager in connection with the
refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds to be Refunded.

(d) The Bank of New York Mellon is hereby appointed as the escrow agent (the “Escrow
Agent”) under the Escrow Deposit Agreement, if necessary. The Escrow Agent shall signify its
acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it by the Escrow Deposit Agreement by the
Escrow Agent's execution thereof.

(e} Causey Demgen & Moore, Inc. is hereby appointed to act as verification agent, if
necessary, in connection with the refunding of all or any portion of the Bonds to be Refunded pursuant
to the terms of the Escrow Deposit Agreement.



H Acacia Financial Group, Inc. is hereby appointed as the financial advisor to the
Authority.in connection with the Bonds.

() U.S. Bank National Association is hereby appointed as the Trustee under the Indenture.
The Trustee's acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it by the Indenture shall be
evidenced by the execution of the Indenture by the Trustee.

(h) The Chair, the Vice-Chair, and/or the Executive Director are hereby anthorized to appoint
any additional underwriters to purchase the Bonds as members of an underwriting syndicate headed by the
Underwriter.

(1) The maximum underwriters discount will be $4.50 per bond.

6. Tncidental Action,

(@  The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized to refund, and to call for redemption (as
applicable), the Bonds to be Refunded selected by Seton Hall, in consultation with the Authority and its
financial advisors; and

(s)) The Authorized Officers of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver such other documents, certificates, directions, releases and notices, and to
take such other action as may be necessary or appropriate in order: (i) to effectuate the execution
and delivery of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Agrecment, the Mortgage; the Indenture, the
Escrow Deposit Agreement or Letter of Instructions, and the issuance and sale of the Bonds,
including, without limitation, documents necessary or appropriate in order to effectuate the
issuance and sale of the Bonds; (ii) to implement the DTC book-entry only system for the Bonds;
(iii) to provide bond insurance, if advisable, (iv) to invest the proceeds of the Bonds in Qualified
Investments (as defined in the Indenture) or as provided in the Escrow Deposit Agreement or
Letter of Instructions; and (v) to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds
(including the preparation and filing of any information reports or other documents with respect
to the Bonds as may at any time be required under Section 149 of the Intenal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended and regulations thereunder.

7. Prior Resolutions.

All prior resolutions of the Authority or portions thereof inconsistent herewith are hereby
repealed.

8. Effective Date.
This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.



RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE DESIGNATION
OF BOND COUNSEL BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF
THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY IN CONSULTATION WITH
THE AUTHORITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE
ISSUANCE OF BONDS BY THE AUTHORITY ON BEHALF
OF PRINCETON UNIVERSITY

ADOPTED APRIL 26, 2011

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority™) was
created as a public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey pursuant to the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey
Statutes, as amended and supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, Princeton University (the “University”) has requested that the Authority
begin the process of procuring professionals in connection with the issuance of bonds to finance
various capital improvements on the University’s campus (the “Financing”); and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General distributed a Request for Proposals for Bond Counsel

Services dated April 4, 2011 to eleven (11) firms; and

2011; and

WHEREAS, the Attorney General received responses from eight (8) firms on April 8,

WHEREAS, the responsive firms and their respective fees are as follows:

Firm

Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP

DeCotiis, FitzPatrick & Cole, LLP
McManimon & Scotland, LLC

Gibbons, PC

Gluck Walrath LLP

McCarter & English, LLP

Obermayer Rebmann Maxwell & Hippel LLP
Windels Marx Lane & Mittendorf, LLP

Fecs

$32,500
$35,000
$38,000
$40,000
$40,000
$44,500
$73,0600
$75,000

" “WHEREAS, the Attorney General has, on the basis of a competitive process in

consultation with the Authority, designated the firm of
the Authority in connection with the Financing;

to act as Bond Counsel to



'NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW
JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:

1. Acknowledgment of the Designation of Bond Counsel by the Attorney
General. The Authority hereby acknowledges the designation by the Attormey General in
consultation with the Authority of to act as Bond Counsel to the Authority in
connection with the Financing.

2. Authorization of Action. The Chair, Vice-Chair, Executive Director, Deputy
Executive Director, Treasurer, Director of Project Management, Project Manager, Secretary or
any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, and/or any other person authorized by resolution of the
Authority, and any of such officers designated as “acting” or “interim” (each an “Authorized
Officer”), is authorized to take any and all action necessary or appropriate to implement this
Resolution.

3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.



RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY AUTHORING ENTRY INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR
PROVISION OF SOLAR ENERGY SERVICES AT THE RICHARD
STOCKTON COLLEGE OF NEW JERSEY

April 26, 2011

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) is a
public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey pursuant to the New Jersey
Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey
. Statutes, as amended and supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq. (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, as authorized pursuant to the Act, the Authority assisted The Richard
Stockton College of New Jersey (the “College”) in financing and refinancing the construction
of various housing facilities and parking in the area referred to herein as the North Residential
Complex through the issuance of various bonds including the Authority’s outstanding
Revenue Bonds, The Richard Stockton College of New Jersey Issues, Series 1988 A, Series
2005 F, Series 2006 F, Series 2007 G and Series 2008 A (collectively, the “Authority Bonds”);
and :

WHEREAS, as security for repayment by the College of the Authority Bonds, the
Authority has title to certain parcels of the North Residential Complex and leases the North
Residential Complex to the College pursuant to Lease and Agreements by and between the
Authority and the College dated as of April 1, 1988, October 1, 2005, September 1, 2006,
December 1, 2007 and August 1, 2008 (collectively, the “Leases”); and

WHEREAS, the College wishes to provide electricity for the North Residential
Complex through selar power pursuant to a Power Purchase Agreement pursuant to which
energy services will be provided by Soltage Stockton, LLC (the “Provider”); and

WHEREAS, in order to provide such énergy services it is necessary for the Provider
to construct and install solar power facilities and related equipment (the “Plant”) in and on the
North Residential Complex; and

WHEREAS, the College has requested the Authority, as owner and lessor of the North
Residential Complex to consent to and enter into the Power Purchase Agreement and to grant
the Provider right to enter the North Residential Complex for the purpose of constructing,
installing, operating, maintaining, repairing and replacing, from time to time, the Plant by
consenting to entry by the College into a Sub-Lease and Access Agreement (the “Sub-Lease™)
with the Provider during the term of the Power Purchase Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the College has advised the Authority that utilization of solar energy
pursuant to the Power Purchase Agreement is expected to result in a reduction of operating
costs for the College; and



“WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it is advisable to enter into the Power
Purchase Agreement and to consent to the Sub-Lease fo grant the Provider the right of access
and 1o enter the North Residential Complex in order to construct, install, operate and maintain
the Plant. '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW
JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Approval of Power Purchase Agreement and Sub-Lease.

The Authority hereby approves the Power Purchase Agreement and the Sub-Lease
substantially in the respective forms available to the Members of the Authority at this meeting
and hereby authorizes and directs the Chair, Vice Chair, Executive Director, Deputy Executive
Director, Director of Risk Management, Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority
(each an "Authorized Officer") to execute and deliver the Power Purchase Agreement and to
acknowledge and consent to the Sub-Lease with such changes as shall be approved by an
Authorized Officer with the advice of bond counsel, if necessary, and the Attorney General of
the State, such execution and delivery to be deemed conclusive evidence of the approval
thereof.

Section 2. Prior Actions Ratified; All Other Necessary Action Authorized.

Any and all prior actions taken by the Authority in connection with the entry into the
Power Purchase Agreement and the Sub-Lease by the Authority are hereby ratified and
confirmed. The Authorized Officers, are each hereby authorized and directed to undertake any
and all actions necessary to effect execution, delivery and performance of the Power Purchase
Agreement and the Sub-Lease and to execute and deliver any other comsents, agreements,
documents, certificates, directions, amendments and notices as may be necessary, advisable, or
appropriate to effect action and the taking of any such action, and the execution and delivery
of each such consent, agreement, documents, certificates, directions and notices shall be
conclusive evidence of the approval thereof by the Authorized Officer taking such action and
of its necessity, advisability or appropriateness. :

Section 3. Effective Date.

This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the provisions of the N.J.5.A.
18A:72A-4(1).



Arrrerican Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA}
The New Jersey State Energy Program — The New Jersey Board of Public Utilities

Grant Assigned to The Richard Steckton Clolie‘gé of New Jersey-{RSC)

Solar-PhotovoItaié, Solar Thermal and Demand Side Management at
Stockton’s North Residential Complex (Housing 1, 4 and 5)

Project Description: Stockton was awarded a grant of 53,464,599. O_f this, $3,191.000 will be
paid to a competitively selected energy services provider working under the provisions of a
Power Purchase Agreement and Lease {to both of which NJ EFA s a party) and a Construction
Services Contract {between RSC and the provider). Stockton agrees to buy all the generated
electricity at a fixed rate for fifteen years. In addition to building, owning and operating the
solar array, the provider will complete two smaller projects (solar thermal hot water hea.ting
and installation of remote controlled thermostats) which will become the property and
responsibility of the College after being commissioned. The provider will own the photovoltaic
Solar Renewable Energy Credits {S-RECs). The College will enter into interconnection and net
metering agreements with the local utility {Atlantic City Electric).

Project elements with estimated annual savings:

Solar photovoltaic arrays, 1600lKW minimum 2,000,000 KWH §255,000
(LE‘D lighting up-grade, parking lots 35,650 KWH $4,545)
Solar thermal hot water héating 10,287 therms $14,916
Remote HVAC controls ‘ 98,125 KWH $12,511

Stockton’s experience: In 2009, 1,175 KW of solar generating capacity was installed pursuant to
a Power Purchase Agreement. (Lighting in the Multi Purpose Recreation Center basketball
arena was also retrofitted for increased energy efficiency at no cost to the College.) The College
buys all the electricity generated, which covers a substantial portion of that used at Housing 2 &
3 and the MPRC.}
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This map shows the proposed construction to be supported by the ARRA grant assigned to Stockten
College by the Nj Board of Public Utilities in October of 2010.

The blue areas are parking ot sections and roof tops where solar photovoltaic panels will be installed.
The green areas are roof top seclar thermal installations. Each pair of buildings has a common hot water
system, so all the residents of Housing 5 {our newest residential complex) will be served by solar hot
water supplemented by the existing gas hot water heaters. The red areas are Housing 1, the College’s
oldest apartments (250 units). They will be retrofitted with remote controlled thermostats to aliow
demand management when the units are unoccupied.












RESOLUTION - AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT AND
RESTATEMENT OF A REVENUE BOND, DREW UNIVERSITY ISSUE,
2098 SERIES I, IN THE ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $40,000,000 OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDED AND
RESTATED BOND AND RELATED INSTRUMENTS AND
DETERMINING OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

ADOPTED: APRIL 26, 2011

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority™) is a body
corporate and politic with corporate succession, constituting a political subdivision of the State
of New Jersey (the “State™), created and established by the New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority Law, being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey Statutes as enacted by
Chapter 271 of the Laws of 1967, as amended and supplemented (the “Act™); and

WHEREAS, Drew University (the “University”) is a nonprofit corporation organized
under the laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, the Act provides that the Authority shall have the power to borrow money
and issue its bonds and to provide for the rights of the holders of its bonds; and

WHEREAS, in order to finance certain capital improvements to the Borrower's campus
facilities in the municipality of Madison, County of Morris, in the State (the “Project™) and to
~pay certain costs of issuance in connection with the Original Bond. (hereinafter defined), the
Authority, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, issued its Revenue Bond, Drew University
Issue, 2008 Series I, in a principal amount not to exceed $40,000,000 (the “Original Bond”) and
secured the Bond by a pledge of moneys to be received by the Authority and the assignment of
certain rights of the Authority with respect to the Project, which pledge and assignment further
secure the payment of the principal of and interest on-the Original Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Authority applied the proceeds of the Original Bond to make a loan to
the University to assist in the financing of the Project in accordance with the Bond Agreement by
and among the Authority, TD Bank, N.A. (the “Purchaser”) and the University dated June 26,
2008 (the “Bond Agreement”) providing, in part, for payments by the University sufficient to
meet installments of interest and principal on the Original Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Purchaser is the holder of the Original Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower and the Purchaser have agreed to amend the interest rate
applicable to certain advances of principal of the Original Bond from (a) 74% of the sum of: 30
day LIBOR plus .85% to (b) 69% of the sum of: 30 day LIBOR plus 1.75%, multiplied by .45%,
and to make certain other changes associated therewith.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY
AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Original Bond of the Authority is hereby authorized to be amended
and restated to provide for a change in the interest rate thereon, as aforesaid and as more fully set
forth in a form of the amended and restated Bond presented to the members of the Authority
herewith in substantially final form (the “Amended Bond”). Such form of Amended Bond is
hereby approved.

Section 2. The Amended Bond shall be executed in the name of the Authority by the
manual or facsimile signature of its Chair, Vice Chair, Executive Director or Deputy Executive
Director (the “Authorized Officers”) and its official common seal (or a facsimile thereof) shall be
thereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise reproduced and attested by the manual or
facsimile signature of its Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Executive Director or Deputy
Executive Director (provided the same has pot executed such Bond).

Section 3. The Authorized Officers are hereby designated to be the authorized
representatives of the Authority, charged by this resolution with the responsibility for executing
the Amended Bond, and each of them is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver
any and all papers, instruments, opinions, certificates, affidavits and other documents and to do
and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out this
resolution and the amendment and restatement of the Original Bond.

Section 4- In case any one or more of the provisions of this resolution, the Bond
Agreement or the Amended Bond. issued hereunder shall for any reason be held to be illegal or
invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this resolution or the
Bond Agreement and the Amended Bond shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or
invalid provision had not been contained therein.

Section 5. All prior resolutions of the Authority or portions thereof inconsistent
herewith are hereby repealed.

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.



RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING SIGNING OF BOND DOCUMENTS

Adopted: April 26, 2011

WHEREAS:  The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority") was created pursuant to
the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law, P.L. 1967, c. 271, N.ILS.A.
18A:72A-1 et seq., as amended and supplemented (the “Act”) and authorized to issue its
obligations to provide a means for New Jersey public and private colleges and universities
to obtain financing to construct educational facilities as defined in the Act; and

WHEREAS:  In connection with issuing and selling bonds of the Authority, it is necessary for certain
officers and staff of the Authority to sign documents relating to the bonds; and

WHEREAS:  In resolutions authorizing the issuance of such bonds, the Members of the Authority
authorize and direct the Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary, Executive Director, Deputy
Executive Director, Director of Project Management and the Assistant Secretaries of the
Authority (the “Designated Authorized Officers™) to execute and deliver necessary and
appropriate bond documents; and

WHEREAS:  The positions of Director of Project Management and Deputy Executive Director are
currently vacant; and

WHEREAS: In the absence of a Director of Project Management and Deputy Executive Director, it is
possible that the other Designated Authorized Officers may be required to recuse
themselves or otherwise be unavailable to execute and deliver necessary documents in
connection with the issuance and sale of bonds; and

WHEREAS:  The staff of the Authority recommends that the Authority’s Project Manager, Jennifer
Soyka, be authorized to execute and deliver documents in situations where the other
Designated Authorized Officers are unable or unavailable to do so; and

WHEREAS:  The Members of the Authority have determined that it is necessary, advisable and
appropriate to authorize Jennifer Soyka to execute and deliver documents under such
circumstances;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  The Authority’s Project Manager, Jennifer Soyka, is hereby authorized to execute and
delivery bond documents including the bonds in connection with the sale and issuance of
bonds as if she were expressly included in the list of Designated Authorized Officers in the
resolution authorizing the sale and issuance of the applicable series of bonds in the event
that other Designated Authorized Officers must recuse themselves or are unavailable to
execute and deliver such documents.



This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act and shall remain in effect until
the position of Director of Project Management or the position of Deputy Executive

Director is filled.

SECTION 2.

SECTION3. This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.



RESCLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF A FINANCIAL PRINTER

Adopted: April 26, 2011

WHEREAS:  The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority") was created
pursuant to the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law, P.L. 1967, c.
271,N.I.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq., as amended and supplemented (the “Act™) and is
authorized to issue its obligations to provide a means for New Jersey public and
private colleges and universities to obtain financing to construct educational
facilities as defined in the Act; and

WHEREAS:  The policies and procedures of the Authority with regard to the selection of
professionals are governed, inter alia, by Executive Order No. 26 (Whitman)
( “EO 26”) which took effect on January 1, 1995 and which supersedes Executive
Orders No. 79 and 92 and Executive Order No. 37 (Corzine) (“EO 37”) which
took effect on November 25, 2006; and

WHEREAS:  The Authority previously retained ImageMaster, Inc. (“ImageMaster™) to provide
financial printing services; and

WHEREAS:  The Authority’s contract with ImageMaster for such services has expired; and

WHEREAS:  The staff of the Authority distributed a Request for Proposals for Financial
Printing services dated March 14, 2011 (the “RFP”) to seventeen (17) firms and
posted the RFP on the Authority’s and the State of New Jersey’s websites; and

WHEREAS:  The Authority received responses from nine (9) firms (the “Responses”); and

WHEREAS:  The Authority formed an Evaluation Committee consisting of the Authority’s
Executive Director, Project Manager and Project / Communications Assistant in
accordance with Paragraph 13 of EO 37; and

WHEREAS:  The Evaluation Committee reviewed the Responses on the basis of factors
outlined in EO 26 and EO 37, including qualifications and experience, expertise,
price, references and geographic location; and

WHEREAS:  The responsive firms and their respective scores and fees are as follows:

Firm Score Fee*

Wold Financial Printing 99 $1,500

Munideals 90 $1,500

McElwee & Quinn, LLC 71 $1,980

Pitney Bowes 58 $1,358

Universal Printing Company 30 $2,160

ImageMaster, Inc. 29 $2,100

Command Financial Press 14 $3,386

Serveo 14 $3,625

Bowne & Co. 12 $6,636

* Fee based on scenario requested in RFP of 200 Preliminary Official Statements at 100 pages per book and 200
Official Statements at 100 pages per book, including charges for electronic distribution and perfect bound.




WHEREAS:  The Bvaluation Committee recomumends the appointment of Wold Financial
Printing for a period of two (2) years commencing on.the effective date of this
Resolution, unless terminated earlier in the sole discretion of the Authority; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY THAT:

SECTION 1.  The Authority hereby authorizes the engagement of Wold Financial Printing to.
serve as the Authority’s Financial Printer for a period of two (2) years
commencing -on the effective date of this Resolution subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Resolution, the RFP and the Firm’s Response, unless
terminated earlier in the sole discretion of the Authority.

SECTION 2.  The Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director or the Director of Project
Management to take and do any and all acts and things as may be necessary or
desirable in connection with the engagement of Wold Financial Printing as the
Financial Printer of the Authority..

SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.

April 26, 2011



103 CoLLEGE Roap East ° PraiNceTON, NEW JERSEY 08540
PHONE 609-987-0880 ° FAX 609-987-0850 ® jpoole@njefa.com

MEW [ERSEY EDUCATIONAL '
FACILITIES AUTHORITY Jim Poorr
i Executive Director

Date: April 26,2011
To: - Members of the Authority
. Re: . Appointment of Arbitrage Compliance RFP Results

On March 11, 2011 Authority staff circulated an RFP to each of the thirty-three Arbitrage
Compliance firms listed in The Bond Buyer’s Municipal Marketplace Directory 2010 and
posted the RFP on the websites of the Authority and the State of New Jersey. On March
28, 2011, seven proposals were received as follows:

Report Fee

Firm First Year/Subsequent Year
Hawkins, Delafield & Wood $1,250/$1,250*
Onmicap/Nixon Peabody $1,500/$1,250

BLX Group $1,600/$1,400%

PFM $1,750/81,750%*

Avant $2,500/$2,500

Arbitrage Compliance Specialists ~ Nonresponsive

Ehlers Nonresponsive

*Indicates that additional charges may be applied for issue complexities.

Of the five responses, the first three listed above offered similar pricing and quality.

Staff recommends using all three firms. It is anticipated that Hawkins, Delafield & Wood
and BLX Group continue preparing reports for issues previously calculated by those
firms. The benefits to this are that continuity in preparation of reports is preferred in the
event of an IRS audit, the firm does not have to provide permission to a successor firm to
receive prior reports and the firm has already obtained all pertinent information and
documentation related to the issue both from the trustee and from the Authority.






WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

APPOINTMENT OF ARBITRAGE COMPLIANCE FIRMS
APRIL 26, 2011

The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority") was created
-pursuant to the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law, P.L. 1967, c.
271, N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq., as amended and supplemented (the “Act”) and
authorized to issue its obligations to provide a means for New Jersey public and
private colleges and universities to obtain financing to construct educational
facilities as defined in the Act; and

The policies and procedures of the Authority with regard to the selection of
professionals are governed, inter alia, by Executive Order No. 26 (Whitman 1994)
(“EO 26”) which took effect on January 1, 1995 and which supersedes Executive
Orders No. 79 and 92 and Executive Order No. 37 (Corzine 2006) (“EO 377)
which took effect on November 25, 2006; and

The Authority determined that it should retain the services of one or more
arbitrage compliance servicers during the two-year period beginning July 1, 2011
and ending June 30, 2013; and

The staff of the Authority distributed the Request for Proposals for Arbitrage
Compliance Services dated March 11,2011 (the “RFP”) to each of the thirty-three
Arbitrage Compliance firms listed in The Bond Buyer's Municipal Markeiplace
Directory 2010 and posted the RFP on the web sites of the Authority and the State
of New Jersey; and

The Authority formed an Evaluation Committee consisting of the Authority’s
Controller and Senior Accountant; and

The Authority received proposals from seven firms, two of which were non-
responsive and five of which were responsive to the RFP (the “Responses™); and

The Evaluation Committee reviewed the Responses and evaluated the Responses
based on the factors outlined in EO 37 including qualifications and experience,
expertise, price, quality of reports and the proposed approach to the services
described in the RFP and references; and

On the basis of the factors outlined in EO 37, the Evaluation Commitiee
determined, in accordance with EO 37, that it would be in the best interests of the
Authority to select Hawkins, Delafield & Wood, Omnicap/Nixon Peabody and
BLX Group (the “Firms”) to provide arbitrage compliance services;



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY THAT:

SECTION 1.  The Authority hereby authorizes the engagement of the Firms to provide arbitrage
compliance services subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Resolution, for a term of two years with the-option to extend for one additional
periods of one year in the sole discretion of the Authority’s Members.

SECTION 2.  The Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director or the Controller and any
of such officers designated as “acting” or “interim” to take and do any and all acts
and things as may be necessary or desirable in connection with engagement of the
Firms to provide arbitrage compliance services to the to the Authority.

SECTICN 3. This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
2011 BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS
FOR THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

Executive Summary

The NJEFA concluded the first three months of 2011 with net operating income in the
amount of $58,661, based on revenues of $859,473 and expenses of $800,812. As a result, net
operating income is higher than budgeted by $44.605. This difference is a resuit of less than
budgeted expenses in the amount of $107,029 partiaily offsef by less than expected revenues in
the amount of $62,424. '

Revenues

Revenues were below budget for the first three months of the year due to lower than
expected Initial Fee income.

Expenses

Operating expenditures for the first three months of the year were favorable as
compared to budget by $107,029. Most of the line items display positive deviations and are
primarily the result of timing.



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

Operating Revenues
Annual Administrative Fees

Initial Fees
Investment Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries

Employee Benefits

Provision for Post Ret. Heaith Benefits
Office of The Governor

Office of The Attorney General
Sponsored Programs
Telephone

Gasoline & Auto Maintenance
Rent

Utilities

Postage

Office Supplies & Expenses
Travel & Official Receptions
Staff Training & Tuition Reimbursement
Insurance

Annual Report & Newstetters
Public Relations

Professional Services

Dues & Subscriptions

Data Processing

Maintenance of Equipment
Depreciation

Contingency

Net Operating Income

ACTUAL vs. BUDGET REPORT
MARCH 2011

Month Ended
March 31, 2011

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2011

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
$279,924  $279,924 § - $ 839,772 § 839772 § -
- 26,250 (26,250) 15,000 78,750 (63,750)

1,089 1,125 (36) 4,701 3,375 1,326

$ 281,013 $ 307,299 $§ (26,286) $ 859473 $ 921,807 $ (62424)
$ 93,884 $112464 $ 18,580 $ 302,554 $ 335,032 $ 32478
179,869 182,660 2,791 242 550 250,586 8,036
12,500 12,500 37,500 37,500 -
1,500 1,500 - 4,500 4,500 -
4,667 4,667 - 14,001 14,001 -

- 1,250 1,250 - 3,750 3,750

1,668 2,208 540 3,297 6,624 3,327

72 1,555 1,483 646 3,510 2,864

18,185 19,667 1,482 54,553 59,001 4,448
1,687 1,792 105 5,060 5,376 316
427 527 100 566 1,254 688

1,170 3,864 2,694 5,733 8,228 2,495
308 2,209 1,901 1,343 4,618 3,275

395 2,345 1,950 395 4,890 4,495
2,873 2,873 - 6,882 8,619 1,737

- 2417 2417 2,430 7,251 4,821

- 750 750 - 2,250 2,250

51,776 80,313 28,537 68,432 98,100 29,668
17,309 13,667 (3,642) 26,068 20,751 (5,317)
3,500 4,000 500 7,000 8,000 1,000
2,313 3,667 1,354 4,303 11,001 6,608
4,333 4,333 - 12,999 12,999 .

$ 398,436 $461228 § 62,792 $ 800,812 $ 907,841 § 107,029
$(117,423) $(153,929) § 36,506 $ 58661 $ 14056 § 44,605
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Four Pillars ot Spirituality

» Prayer
+ Study
+» Community

+ Ministry
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Mary Mother Joseph Dunn
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NJEFA

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
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Most Reverend

Thomas !oseEh Walsh

Archbishop of Newark
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Caldwell College

Sapientia et Scientia

Wisdom and Knowledge
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Student Life Activities
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Jennings Library Groundbreaking

“Pictured Left: Sister Raymond (first Academic Dean); Mother Joseph (Foundress and NIEFA ‘
second President); Margaret Richardson (President of Student Government); WJFRLDWIDNM
Monsignor John L. McNulty (President of Seton Hall University) * FACILITIES AUTHORTY



Accreditation

May 1952 — Caldwell College receives
Middle States accreditation
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College Expansion




Equal Opportunity Fund

FY 2010

% 12,400+ student grant recipients

+ $25.5 million in EOF Grants

+ $12.8 million in Supplemental
Education Program Grants
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Bachelor of Fine Arts
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Applied Behavioral Analysis
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Academics

+ 13 academic departments
% 29 undergraduate degrees

% 24 graduate programs
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Power Degrees

% 5-year B.A. or B.S. in content area/M.A.
in Curriculum and Instruction

% 5-year B.S./M.B.A.

% 5-year B.S./M.S. in Accounting
% 3-year B.A. 1n Psychology

% 3-year B.S. in Business

+ B.S. in Nursing
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Caldwell College

+ Fall 2010 enrollment: 2.500
+ Student-to-faculty ratio: 13:1
+ Living on campus: 43%0
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Cougar Pride
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Caldwell College

% 2010-11 full-time tuition: $24,752
+ Students receiving financial aid:  90%

+ Average financial aid awarded:  $13,750
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Nancy H. Blattner, PH.D.

“....that ‘special spirit,” that
atmosphere of community which
encompassed the entirety of
Caldwell College then, is still alive
today...”
President Blattner

In Celebration of Community, Inaugural Address
November 7, 2009
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Empowering the Legacy
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Excellence
— Strengthen the credibility of academic programs
— Expand faculty and staff recruitment and retention initiatives
— Establish a culture of accountability
Stewardship
— Achieve financial flexibility

*

— Develop a campus wide risk management program

— Renovate and build facilities and upgrade equipment to expand and support academic and
soclal opportunities for students

Optimize the use of technology on campus

V1ta11ty

— Develop an online programming strategy

*

— Expand student recruitment and retention initiatives

— Expand marketing initiatives

— Cultivate greater community and alumni engagement
Distinctiveness

— Develop new and expand existing academic programs and partnerships consistent with the
mission, vision and values of the college that address student needs and market demand

— Integrate the mission throughout the campus culture

NJEFA
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Relationship with NJEFA

» 4 stand-alone 1ssues since 1999

»  $40 million total par issuec

|

»  $25 million 1ssued for new
capital projects
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Jennings Library
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Werner Hall
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Newman Center
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Dominican Hall
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State-Backed Issues

» Higher Education Facilities Trust Fund:

Series 1995 A - §777,778

» Higher Education Technology Infrastructure Fund:
Series 1998 A - $281,937

» Higher Education Capital Improvement Fund:
Series 2000 A - $2,293,879

+ Dormitory Safety Trust Fund:

Series 2001 A - $474,000

+ Dormitory Safety Trust Fund:

Series 2003 A - $209,045
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Outstanding Debt

As of April 15, 2011

% Stand-alone: $19.035,000
% State-backed: $989 285
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Thank You
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Credits

Caldwell College

Celebrating the Past, § /%/zpz'ﬂ the Future: A Short History
of Caldwell C‘ag//ege 1939-1989:
Sister Rita Margaret Chambers, OP, Ph.D.
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